BANK OF ENGLAND
PRUDENTIAL REGULATION
AUTHORITY

FINANCIAL CONDUCT AUTHORITY

Mutual Societies Annual Return Form (AR30)

For societies registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014

Society name:

ateb group Itd

Important information you should read before completing this form

You must use this form if you are a:
o registered society (previously referred to as an ‘industrial and provident society’)
e co-operative society
e community benefit society

registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014.

You must submit this form and the society’s accounts within 7 months of the end of your financial year. Failure
to submit is an offence for which the society may be prosecuted.

Please note:
¢ we have an information note that may assist you in completing this application
¢ any personal details you give on the form will be placed on the society's public file.

¢ itis important you give accurate and complete information and disclose all relevant information. If you
do not, it may take us longer to process your annual return.

Please keep a copy of the form and supporting documents for future reference.

Terms in this form

'FCA', ‘PRA’, 'us' and 'we' refer to the Financial Conduct Authority or Prudential Regulation Authority.
'You' refers to the person signing the form on behalf of the society.
‘The 2014 Act’ is the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014
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BANK OF ENGLAND
PRUDENTIAL REGULATION
AUTHORITY

FINANCIAL CONDUCT AUTHORITY

Mutual Societies Annual Return Form (AR30)

For societies registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014

Filling in the form
If you are using your computer to complete the form:

e use the TAB key to move from question to question and press SHIFT TAB to move back to the previous question;
and

e print the completed form and arrange for it to be signed by all relevant individuals.
If you are filling in the form by hand:

e use black ink;

e write clearly; and

e arrange for it to be signed and dated by all relevant individuals.

3 If you make a mistake, cross it out and initial the changes; do not use correction fluid.

If you:
e leave a question blank;
e do not get the form signed; or
e do not attach the required supporting information

without telling us why, we will treat the application as incomplete. This will increase the time taken to assess your
application.

If there is not enough space on the form, you may use separate sheets of paper. Clearly mark each separate sheet of
paper with the relevant question number. Any separate sheets should be signed by the signatories to the form.

Email a scanned copy of the sighed form and supporting documents to

mutualsannrtns@fca.org.uk

or send it by post to:

Mutuals Team

Financial Conduct Authority
25 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

LONDON

E14 5HS

7. Please make sure you include:
e this form
e aset of printed accounts — signed by two members and the secretary (3 signatures in total)
e an audit report or accountant’s report where required; and

e any supporting documents.
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1 Details of society

Details of society

1.1 Details of the society

Register number 2330R

Registered office  |Meyler House, St Thomas Green, Haverfordwest, Pembrokeshire
address

Postcode SAGL 1QP

1.2 Year end date (dd/mm/yyyy)
See Note 1.2

31|/ |o|3|/|2]|0]|1]s8

Committee of management
If you are a club you do not need to give a year of birth in questions 1.3-1.6.

The names of the members of the Committee at the date on which the return is signed
should be entered below in BLOCK CAPITALS.

1.3 Details of Chairman

Name Mr Mark Lewis

Address 38 West Lane Close
Keeston
Haverfordwest

Postcode SA62 6EW

Year of birth 1953

Business occupation
and other Retired Finance Director
directorships

1.4 Details of Treasurer

Name N/A
Address N/A
Postcode N/A
Year of birth N/A

Business occupation
and other N/A
directorships
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1.5 Details of Secretary

1.6

1 Details of society

Name Mr Nicholas Hampshire
Address 28 Tydfil Place
Roath Park
Cardiff
Postcode CF23 5HP
Year of birth 1965

Business occupation

and other
directorships

Housing Association Chief Executive

Details of Members of the Committee

Name Address Year of Business
birth occupation
and other
directorships
Mrs Christina Hirst Ravel 1966 Chartered Surveyor
(retired Sept 17) Brynberian
Crymych
Pembrokeshire
SA41 3TQ
Mr Martin Bell Longstone Farmhouse | 1944 Retired planning
(retired Sept 17) Ludchurch officer.
Narberth
SA67 8PE
Mr Ronald Butler Anleigh View 1947 Retired Chartered
Clay Lanes Surveyor. Board of
Haverforduest West Wales Care &
SA61 1UH Repair
Mrs Geraldine 15 Addison Road 1951 Retired Head
Campbell Haverfordwest Occupational
SAG1 1UB Therapist. Board of
West Wales Care &
Repair
Mr Brian Charles 8 Ty Charlotte 1937 Former Executive
OBE Marconi Avenue chairman of Welsh
(retired Sept 17) Penarth KIVE}[FGI' alng 'I;rus_tee of
ational Botanic
CF64 1SU Gardens
Mr Edward Lewis 2 Rock Cottage 1953 Retired Senior

(retired Sept 17)

St Julian's Street
Tenby
SA70 8BH

Partner Solicitor

Please use separate sheets of paper if you need more space, following the instructions
provided in section 5 above.

Please indicate how many separate sheets of paper you have used

1

Please continue, answering all questions.
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ateb Group Ltd - FCA RETURN 2017-2018

1.6 Details of Members of the Committee (additional page)

Name Address Year of birth Business occupation
and other
directorships
Clir David Simpson Oakdale House 1951 Leader of local council
(retired Sept 17) Gower Villa Lane and Magistrate.
Clynderwen
SA66 7NL

Mr Hugh Watchman Rose Cottage 1962 Buyer for large
Bethesda Electrical Independent
Narberth Buying Group. Board of
SAGB7 8HQ West Wales Care &

Repair

Mrs Hannah Dabhill Westbury House 1983 HR Solicitor
Old Rosemarket Road
Johnston
Haverfordwest
SA62 3HG

Mr David Birch 4 Cefn Llan 1947 Director of Property
Pentyrch Management company
Cardiff
CF15 9QX

Fu*gu.‘ﬁ)\/*\»/\




1 Details of society

1.7 Are any members of the society’s committee disqualified as directors under the
Company Director Disqualification Act 1986?

X No
[ Yes

1.8 Does the society carry out any activity which is regulated under the Financial
Services and Markets Act 20007 (e.g. accepting deposits in a form other than
withdrawable shares; offering insurance products; undertaking residential mortgage
business). If ‘yes’ please state the society’s Financial Services Register firm reference
number

X No
[ Yes

Financial Services Register firm reference number

1.9 Isthe society a subsidiary of another society?

X No
[ Yes

1.10 Does the society have one or more subsidiaries?

] No
X Yes

1.11 Is the society currently accepted by the HM Revenue and Customs as a charity for tax
purposes?
] No
X Yes

Please confirm you have attached a copy of the letter from HM Revenue and Customs
confirming charitable tax status:

X Yes

1.12 Is this society a charity registered with the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator
(OSCR)?

X No

[ Yes » provide your Scottish Charity number below

1.13 Is the society registered with one of the following (please tick)?
[ Homes and Communities Agency
X] The Welsh Ministers
[ Scottish Housing Regulator

If so, please provide your register number

P0O72
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1 Details of society

All societies must answer the following questions:

o ifabona fide co-operative society go to question 1.14

o f existing for the benefit of the community go to question 1.19

Bona fide co-operative society

1.14 How did members benefit from the business, industry or trade of the society
during the year?

1.15 Is membership of the society required to obtain the benefits offered by it?
] Yes
1 No

1.16 In what way did members participate in an ongoing basis in the society’s primary
business during the year?

1.17 How did members democratically control the society?
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1 Details of society

1.18 How did the society use any surplus/profit?

If the society distributed the surplus/profit to members please explain how this was done.

Please use separate sheets of paper if you need more space (see section 5 above)
Please indicate how many separate sheets of paper you have used.

Continue to 2.1
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1 Details of society

Community benefit society

1.19 Who are the community the society benefited?

People in housing need who are unable to afford to rent or buy in the private market.

1.20 How did the society benefit that community during the year?

It provided affordable quality rented homes and associated facilities and amenities.

1.21 How did the society use any surplus/profit?

Any surplus was re-invested to provide homes and associated facilities and amenities.

Please use separate sheets of paper if you need more space (see section 5 above).
Please indicate how many separate sheets of paper you have used.

Continue to 2.1
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2.1

Statistics

Account details

You must enter the figures below

See notes for help on items E-T. Enter NIL where applicable

A |Members at beginning of year 58

B |Members ceased during year 28

C |Members admitted during year 4

D |Members at end of year 34

E |Turnover for year £14,993,441
Total of income and expenditure

F  |(receipts and payments added £31,094,681
together)

G |Net surplus/(deficit) for year £2,949,435

H Fixed assets

£189,259,471

| Current assets

£29,130,218

Total assets (equal to amount in

J row O, below) £218,389,689
K |Current liabilities £12,531,079
L  |Share capital 34

M  |Long-term liabilities £180,409,063
N Reserves £25,449,513

Total liabilities, share capital &
O |reserves (K+L+M+N) (equal to
amount in J above)

£218,389,689

All societies (excluding clubs) must complete boxes P-T

Investments in other registered

P ~= 0
societies

Q |Loans from members 0
Loans from Employees'

R . 0
Superannuation Schemes

S |Dividends on sales 0

T |Share interest 0

2 Statistics

FCA e Mutuals AR 30 — co-operative and community benefit societies (F) e Release 3 e July 2014
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2 Statistics

2.2 Names of subsidiaries as defined in sections 100 and 101 of the Co-operative and
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014

Mill Bay Homes Ltd

West Wales Care & Repair

2.3Names of subsidiaries not dealt with in group accounts (if any) and reasons for
exclusions (as approved by the FCA)

The society must have written authority from us to exclude a subsidiary from group
accounts
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3 The audit

The audit

3.1

3.2

3.3

Type of audit used for the attached accounts.

If the society has used a full professional audit or an accountant's report then the report
must be prepared by a registered auditor.

X1 Full professional audit » Continue to section 4

[J Accountant's report » Complete questions 3.2 and 3.3

] Lay audit » Complete questions 3.2 and 3.3

] Unaudited » Complete questions 3.2 and 3.3

Do the society's registered rules allow the society not to undertake a full
professional audit?

] No
[ Yes

Has the membership passed at a general meeting a resolution allowing the society
not to undertake a full professional audit for the year of account in question? (In
accordance with section 84 of the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act
2014)

] No
[ Yes
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4 Accounts and signature

Accounts and signature

Accounts

4.1 Date on which the accounts and balance sheet will be/were laid before the AGM
(dd/mm/iyyyy)

112 |/ |lofle}j/|2|0|1]|8

4.2 Has your society produced accounts to the minimum standard required?

Yes » you must confirm that you have attached the accounts
and the audit/accountant's report bearing the original

signatures of the auditor (if required by law), the secretary
and the two committee members. [JAttached

[J No » you must produce accounts to the minimum standard

required, see notes for details.

Signature - all societies to complete

4.3 The Secretary of the society must sign and date below

| certify that the information in this form is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Name Mr Nicholas Hampshire

Y

Signature

Phone number 1437 763688

Email

nick.hampshire@atebgroup.co.uk

Date

12/09/2018

FCA e Mutuals AR 30 - registered societies (F) e Release 3 e July 2014
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

(Formerly known as Pembrokeshire Housing Association Limited)

CONSOLIDATED REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March 2018
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED
OFFICERS AND PROFESSIONAL ADVISERS

Welsh Government Registered Number: PO72
Financial Conduct Authority Registered Number: 23308R

Board of Management: Mr. M. Lewis, CPFA (Chair)
Mr. R. Butler, PG Dip (Con.Mgmt.), FRICS (Vice-Chair)
Mr. M. Bell, BA, DipTP, MRTPI (resigned Sept 2017)
Mr. D.Birch (appointed July 2017)
Mrs. D. Campbell
Mr. B. Charles, CPFA, OBE (resigned Sept 2017)
Mrs. H. Dahill (appointed July 2017)
Mrs. C. Hirst, DipRSA, BSc (Hons), MSc, FRICS (resigned Sept 2017)
Mr. E. Lewis (resigned Sept 2017)
Clir. Mr. D. Simpson (resigned Sept 2017)
Mr. Hugh Watchman

Group Chief Executive: Mr. N. Hampshire, BSc (Hons), MBA, MRICS
Senior Executives: Mr. A. Williams, FCCA (Group Finance Director)
Mrs. E. Brock BSc, MSc, MCIH (Housing Director)
Mr. N. Sinnett, BSc, MRICS, AaPS (Group Property Services Director)

Secretary: Mr. N. Hampshire, BSc (Hons), MBA, MRICS
Registered Office: Meyler House, St. Thomas Green, Haverfordwest, Pembrokeshire. SA61 1QP
External Auditors: Bevan & Buckland

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
Langdon House

Langdon Road

Swansea SA1 8QY

Internat Auditors: RSM
Regus House
Cardiff Gate Business Park
Cardiff CF23 8RU

Principal Solicitors: Hugh James Devonshires Blake Morgan
114 — 116 St Mary Street 30 Finsbury Circus One Central Square
Cardiff CF10 1DY London EC2M 7DT Cardiff CF10 1FS
Bankers: Barclays Bank PLC

Windsor Court
3 Windsor Place
Cardiff CF10 3AX

Funders: Barclays Bank PLC
The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC
Principality Building Society
The Housing Finance Corporation
The Co-operative Bank PLC
Yorkshire Building Society
M&G Investments
BAE Systems Pension fund
Welsh Government



ATEB GROUP LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2018.

Strategic Report

2017-18 Financial Performance

2017-18 returned a strong financial performance for the Group with all companies performing well. Although the
net surplus for the year at 12.7% was down on the previous year (14.2%), this was after absorbing one-off costs
and a significant increase in replacement component costs as we continue to maintain a high level of
investment in our properties.

This was the main reason for the increase in operating costs in the affordable and social housing business
(£0.3m). The total revenue spend on replacement components was £1.1m (2017:£0.8m) and components
classified as capital spend amounted to £1.5m (2017:£1.4m). Property maintenance is a large area of
expenditure in this business and includes kitchen, bathroom and boiler replacements as well as improving
energy efficiency.

The impact on operating costs that can arise from a varying level of revenue component spend is illustrated in
the following graph:
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It can be clearly seen that 2017-18 has incurred a much higher level of spend as components come to the end
of their useful economic lives.

Donated land value adjustments in respect of properties acquired from developers under Section 106 planning
obligations have also resulted in a reduction in the net surplus. This can vary significantly from year to year and
is largely outside the control of the business:

fm 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
T 1.3 0.6 0.3




ATEB GROUP LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Group highlights

e turnover grew by 4.6% to just over £24m
e allloan covenants were complied with by a comfortable margin
¢ social housing units in management increased by 2.8% to 2,690no

The subsidiary businesses of Mill Bay Homes and West Wales Care and Repair both performed well:

o« Mill Bay Homes returned over £1m in gift aid to the parent; a performance that is consistent with
previous years. 47no. new homes were sold during the year and 31no. reservations taken on properties
under construction. Mill Bay achieved its 150" sale during the year and sales activity continues to
remain strong.

s West Wales Care and Repair helped over 3,000 older people to continue living safely and
independently in their own homes. A surplus of £129k was returned which will strengthen reserves and
ensure the future stability and development of the Agency in the delivery of services to those who need
them.

Financial Statements

The Statement of Financial Position has increased in strength with fixed assets and investments increasing by
3.7% to £192.4m and reserves by 13.5% to £26.0m. Cash and ready access to secured loan facilities ensures
that all current commitments are fully funded.

A summary of the financial performance of the Group is shown below:

Statement of Comprehensive | Group ateb WWCR | Mill Bay
Income £m* £m £m £m
2017-18

Turnover 24.2 15.0 0.8 84
Operating costs and cost of sales | (18.2) (10.4) (0.7) (7.1)
Operating surplus 6.0 4.6 0.1 1.3

Net interest and other costs (3.0) R (1.3)
Surplus for the year 3.0 29 0.1 - |

"inter-campany costs cance/ ouf on consolidation

' Statement of Financial Position | Group | ateb WWCR | Mill Bay
2017-18 £m* £m £m £m
Tangible fixed assets/investments | 192.5 1981 - -

Net current assets +13.9 7.8 0.6 5.6
Total assets 2064 |2059 |06 56
Trade payables > 1 year (180.4) (180.4) (0.1) (5.6)
Reserves 26.0 255 0.5 -

*inter-company balances cancel out on consolidation



ATEB GROUP LIMITED

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Key performance indicators Group ateb WWCR | Mill Bay
2017-18

Operating margin 25% 30% 15% 16%
Months cash/secured loans 30

available

Interest cover (min. 1.1) 1.6

Gearing (max. 80%) 65%

The Group will continue to pursue its policy of reinvesting surpluses for the benefit of its customers through our
investment programmes in improving services, maintaining our properties and in developing new homes.

Prior Year Comparisons

The following charts show high level financial performance since 2015/16 when FRS102 was first applied:
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

After adjusting for the impact of revenue component costs and donated land accounting adjustments, the
financial performance is much more consistent as shown in the following graphs:
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We continue to improve our performance in controlling rent arrears and income lost due to voids as evidenced

by the graphs shown below:
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Value for Money — Global Accounts Indicators

Our strategic direction places a great deal of focus on Value for Money (VFM) and we will continue to develop

this further in a clear and transparent way around core indicators year on year.




ATEB GROUP LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

When measured against the Global Accounts VFM indicators, the Group performs very well:

Welsh Welsh ateb
Indicator Sector Sector Group

2015-16* | 2016-17* | 2017-18*
Operating costs per unit £3,012 £2,795 £2,208
Management costs per unit £981 £099 £860
Reactive repairs costs per unit £1,052 £976 £904
Capitalised component cost per unit £679 £615 £562
Bad debts per unit £28 £28 £14
Weighted average cost of capital 4.56% 4.52% 4.03%
Free cash flow £1.73m £1.11m £1.89m
Gross rent arrears/lettings 4,00% 4.58% 3.20%
Total rent charges per unit £5,027 £4,869 £5,574
Rent void loss per unit £64 £49 £11

*shown at out-turn price level

2018-19 Priorities

Our Service Delivery Plan will be fully implemented in 2018/19 and this will become the VFM platform for driving
out efficiency and improving customer service. This will also give us a better understanding of the underlying
factors which influence operating costs across the service areas in the business.

Our new Strategic Plan sets out key aims that are directly linked to managing resources economically, efficiently
and effectively to provide quality services and deliver continuous improvement in what we do.

We will engage further with customers and staff in re-shaping our values through our ‘involve-to-inform’
inittatives.

Debt Structure and Treasury Policy

At 31 March 2018, we had £86m of drawn debt funding, a decrease from 2017 (£88m). We have a well-
balanced portfolio, with a good mix lenders/investors, types of loan and terms to repayment
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Refinancing Risk

Our re-financing risk over the next six years is expected to be £29m spread between July 2021 and October
2023:

Lender Amount Repayment Date
Barclays Bank £20m July 2021
Co-operative Bank £8m August 2023
THFC £1m October 2023

Liquidity

As at 31 March, we maintained £20m of secured undrawn facilities available for immediate drawdown, and
£12.6m of cash in hand making a total available liquidity of £32.6m. This is sufficient to fund over two years'
commitments. In addition, we have an overdraft facility of £2m which acts as a short-term liquidity buffer.

Forecast Borrowing

Based on our latest business plan, our debt is forecast to increase from £86m to a peak of £106m in 2022/23.
The chart below sets out our forecast debt in 2023 relative to our available drawn and undrawn facilities:
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Interest Rate Risk

At 31 March 2018, 76% of the current debt is fixed.

The following chart shows the mix:

:

6%

Fixed interest rate loans are expiring at different intervals:

Balance

@31/03/48

Lender

2017

2018 | 2019 | 2020

2021

2022

2023 2024

2028

2026

2027

2028 | 2029

£1.187.816
£326.071
£592.626
€3.761.218
£2.554,092
£807.455
£457.830
£215.426
£330.122
£250,029
£280,777
£448.369
£4,492,084
£168.368
£4.079.648
£2,062,400

£21.824.977

(X

£

2030

2001

2o

2032 | 2033 | 2034 | 2035 | 2038 | 2037 2040 | 2049

2042

2043

2044

2045

2046

Fix Perod

LoanParl

MeG £12,750.000

R8BS £361.702

BAE £20.000.000

THFG £1.000.000

€1 0m|

£8,000.000

SRS

£530.017

£629.371¢

[
[

Key
' fix Peticd
Loan Petiod

Tola)

£66,008,867

Note: £values in the final columns are the loan balances outstanding.




ATEB GROUP LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

In the short term ¢.76% of the debt is fixed, and over 50% of the forecast debt is fixed for five years or more.
The next significant interest rate exposure is the expiry of the Yorkshire BS loan in 2027. This is a healthy
position to be in but also has the benefit of not being fully fixed, thus providing some advantage from the current
low interest rate environment. It also allows scope for further debt to be fixed if so desired, e.g. when the £20m
Barclays Bank and £8m Co-operative Bank loans are refinanced.

Security

The graph below shows our forecast debt requirement compared with the property values that are available to
secure that debt. It can be seen that there is more than sufficient collateral available to secure the debt
requirement in the five-year business plan. Assuming an asset cover of 125%, we will need £44m of property to
secure the £35m borrowing requirement. Over £68m of property is available - an excess of £24m. The £68m
available comprises; £24m that could be released from charge when the £20m Barclays Bank RCF is re-
financed, £12m in excess security charged to other lenders and £32m in completed schemes that are available
for charging.

Cash flow

Net cash inflow from group operating activities during the year was £8.98m (2017: £6.54m). The main sources
of cash income are rental income and property sales and the main sources of cash outflow are costs associated
with property rentals, the acquisition and construction of new housing properties and loan interest.

Governance and Service Delivery
Organisational Structure, Governance & Risk Management

The Group structure is shown as follows:



ATEB GROUP LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Sroup Limited is the parent of the : = Group and the affordable and social housing business. Mill Bay
Homes Limited (MBH) is the property development business building new homes for sale. West Wales Care
and Repair Limited (WWCR) provides support services to older clients enabling them to continue living in their
own homes. The remaining entity in the Group structure is a dormant company — Effective Building Solutions
Limited (EBS).

The Board Members who served during the year are shown on page 1.

The Group Board can comprise up to twelve full members and three co-opted members. Board members are
drawn from a wide background bringing together a diverse skills-set. The primary role of the Board is to focus
on strategic direction, growth and investment and risk. The Board meets formally ten times a year for regular
business and at other times to discuss strategic issues.

The Group Board is supported by three committees with specific responsibilities:

¢ Personnel - deals with any personnel matters such as grievances and appeals.

¢ Remuneration Committee — responsible for our policy on remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment.

¢ Audit Committee — responsible for the operations of internal audit, the appointment of internal auditors,
the scope of the internal and external audit plans and their reports. The committee has delegated
responsibility for the risk management strategy. It reports to the Group Board on the effectiveness of the
internal control arrangements and provides an annual report to the Group Board on the work
undertaken by the Audit Committee.

Mill Bay Homes Limited and West Wales Care and Repair Limited are wholly owned subsidiaries.
Legal status and Governance Framework changes

We saw significant improvements in our governance systems through 2017/18. Here is a summary of the key
changes:

Mill Bay Homes Limited (MBH)

e Change of legal status from Registered Social landlord to a company limited by shares and registered
under the Companies Acts. A single share is held by Sroup limited (AG)
e New Articles of Association based on Model Articles
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o New floating charge agreement as security for the maximum limit of £10M on-lending from AG to MBH

s New arms-length Loan facility Agreement setting out the terms of the on-lending arrangement

o New directors appointed 3no. AG employees (Chief Executive, Group Finance Director, Group Property
Services Director), 1no. independent Chair (Michael Westerman, previously an AG & MBH Board
Member), 1no. AG Board Member (Ron Butler, previously the MBH Chair)

e Board Terms of Reference, Financial regulations and Standing Orders and Schedule of Delegated
authority updated to reflect changes

¢ Full compliance with Regulatory Circular 05/08

West Wales Care & Repair (WWCR)

¢ Change of legal status from Registered Social Landlord to charitable Community Benefit Society with a
single share being held by AG

e New company rules based on Community Housing Cymru 2017 Model rules

e Board of Management: 2no. Councillors from Pembrokeshire County Council, 2no. Councillors from

o Ceredigion County Council and 2no. Board Members from AG

e Board Terms of Reference, Financial regulations and Standing Orders and Schedule of Delegated
authority updated to reflect changes.

Group Limited

o New company rules based on Community Housing Cymru 2017 Model Rules (legal and regulatory
status remains unchanged)

¢ Change of name from Pembrokeshire Housing Limited te Group Limited

s Board of Management appointed during the year consisted of 7no.

¢ New CHC code of Governance

e Board Terms of Reference, Financial regulations and Standing Orders and Schedule of Delegated
authority updated to reflect changes.

Rebranding to Group Limited

On the 1st March 2018 we formally launched our new brand - . This move had been planned for circa two
years and was a response to changing operational and political landscapes.

The Welsh Government has been actively seeking local government reorganisation across Wales, which in our
area of operation would possibly see Pembrokeshire working closely with or merged with Carmarthen and/or
Ceredigion.

With the Tai Cantref merger with Wales & West, we anticipated a shift in the way development activity was
undertaken in Pembrokeshire as a consequence. As we are currently only zoned to Pembrokeshire for Social
Housing Grant, the merger and change in approach could negatively impact our aspirations.

Having considered the above changes and recognised a desire to evolve our strong brand and track record of
performance, the decision was taken to rebrand the organisation, refresh our purpose and DNA (culture/values)
and establish 3no. clear strategic aims for the group.

Throughout 2017/18 the whole team have been involved in understanding what is important to our success and
what we need to do to realise it. The result was a document called 'The Manual’ which sets out what good
should look like for .~ . The Manual is supported by five more detailed documents:

s What you can expect from us — our service commitment to our customers
¢ 'Weare > — our analysis of the behaviours, leadership style and technical skills we will need to be
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present throughout our teams and running through our role profiles and personal achievement
framework

e Strategic Plan — our 3 year strategic ptan supported by a 5-year business plan

¢ Service Delivery Plan — our proposed operational framework

o ‘Rest Assured’ — our approach to giving assurance that we are doing what we say in ‘The Manual’

¢ The above framework will be actioned in 2018/19 to support the new ateb brand. The rebranding and
repositioning process will take a number of years to fully establish

Some key headlines from the rebrand:

o Al tenants communicated the new name and the reasons for change ahead of the launch.

o Weish Government involved and approved all proposals

e Two shareholder events to promote the change with a successful 80%+ vote for change

o We are promoting our brand as ‘ateb’ but have the company name of ‘ateb Group Limited’

¢ Our new ‘Engage Initiative’ was launched at the same time as the new name to gather the views of
tenants on key business matters

o Costs of the rebrand were contained well within approved budgets

¢ New web site and social media launched — www.atebgroup.co.uk and we are on Facebook and Twitter

e A new approach to communicating our brand externally to appeal to a wider audience

o Evolution of our systems to support our new brand (The Manual)

Regulatory Performance and Risk Management
Regulatory Framework

The Welsh Government introduced its new Regulatory Framework in 2017/18. The Framework operates on a
co-regulation basis and focuses on ten performance standards.

We received our first judgement in Q1 17/18 as follows:

+« Governance and Services: Standard
+ Financial Viability : Standard

The judgement is available on our website www.atebgroup.co.uk

The Regulator highlighted two areas of ongoing development:

¢ increase our gender balance on our Board

¢ show how we ‘hard wire’ tenant involvement into our strategic planning process
Both development areas have been subsequently included in our strategic plan as priorities for our ongoing
development.

Risk Management

The Group Board is responsible for strategic risk management. There is a risk management framework in place
that manages and mitigates key strategic and business critical risks.

Our approach to risk management is continually reviewed and monitored by the Audit Committee on behalf of
the Group Board. All subsidiary businesses are required to comply with the risk management framework.

The Risk Register is managed by the Risk Panel which consists of representatives from across the Group. Each
representative is a ‘risk owner’ acting as an early warning of changes or new and emerging risks.

-12-



ATEB GROUP LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

This approach enables the Group to foresee risks and to implement mitigating controls before they adversely
impact on the business or delivery of key targets.

The Assets and Liabilities Register is also monitored by the Risk Panel and the Audit committee.
Strategic Plan
During the year we have developed a new 3-year strategic plan based on three strategic aims:

e Increase corporate strength
e Improve service delivery
» New business growth

The plan has identified 19no. strategic priorities for the Board over the course of the plan and is supported by a
5-year business plan from which we have set our 3-year financial targets. It is our intention that we will produce
an Annual Strategic Report at the end of each financial year setting out our performance against the plan and
financial targets. The first full review will be for the financial year 2018/19.

The strategic plan incorporates a number of our on-going corporate objectives as well as introducing new
priorities primarily around the rebrand and underlying improvements, governance enhancement, new business
development and service delivery improvements.

Key 2018/19 Corporate Dates

Corporate Review (including Internal Audit Review, Strategic Plan Apr 18
and 5 year Business Plan)

| Private Finance Return May 18
Annual Statement of Schedule 1 exemptions May 18 o
Tenant Satisfaction Results Jun 18
AGM’s Jul 18
Qtr1 Management Accounts Jul 18
Financial statements Jul 18
Annual Statement of Compliance return Jun 18
30 year Financial forecasts Aug 18
Regulatory Judgement Q2 18
Annual Review (including Self Evaluation 18/19) ) Sep 18
Qtr2 Management Accounts Oct 18
Qtr3 Management Accounts Jan 18
Development & Diversification Survey Feb 19

Changes in Fixed Assets

Details of fixed assets are set out in notes 10 to 12.
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Responsibilities of the Board of Management

Housing Association legislation requires the Association’s Board of Management to prepare financial statements
for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Association and of its income
and expenditure for that year. In preparing those financial statements, the Board of Management is required to:

= select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
®  make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice for
Registered Social Landlords have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Association will continue to operate.

The Board of Management is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Association and to enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the requirements of the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the
Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and The Accounting Requirements for Registered Social Landiords
General Determination (Wales) 2015. it is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Association and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Internal Financial Controls

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Association's system of internal financial control, which is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of
proper accounting records and the reliability of financial information used within the business.

The following mechanisms were in place and were designed to provide effective internal control:

clearly defined management and reporting structures;

clearly defined standing orders and financial regulations;

financial training programme;

procedures manuals for staff;

management information and accounting systems with monthly reporting of financial results and other
performance indicators;

rolling five year business plans;

risk management process, including an annual risk review; and

monitoring of the control system by the Audit Committee, internal auditors and external audit;

policy statement on fraud covering prevention, detection and reporting of fraud and the recovery of assets.

The Board of Management has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal financial control in existence
in the Association for the year ended 31st March 2017. No weaknesses were found in internal financial
controls, which resulted in material losses, contingencies, or uncertainties, which require disclosure in the
financial statements or in the auditors' report on the financial statements.

The Board of Management and Executive Officers
The Board of Management and Executive Officers of the Association are listed on Page 1.
Each member of the Board of Management holds one fully paid share of £1 in the Association. The Executive

Officers of the Association hold no interest in the Association’s share capital and although not having the legal
status of directors they act as executives within the authority delegated by the Board.
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Post Balance Sheet Events
There are no significant post balance sheet events.

Auditors

A resolution to reappoint Bevan & Buckland will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

N. Hampshire
Secretary

Date: 28/06/18
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ATEB GROUP LIMITED REGISTERED
UNDER THE CO-OPERATIVE AND COMMUNITY BENEFIT SOCIETIES ACT 2014

In addition to our audit on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2018, we have reviewed the
Board's statement of ATEB Group Limited's (“the Association") compliance with the Welsh Government Circular
02/10, Internal Financial Control and Financial Reporting ("the Circular").

The objective of our review is to enable us to conclude on whether the Board has provided the disclosures
required by the Circular and whether the statement is consistent with the information of which we are aware
from our audit work on the financial statements.

We are not required to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's corporate governance
procedures or its internal financial control.

Opinion

With respect to the Board's statement on internal financial control on page 14, in our opinion the Board of
Management has provided the disclosures required by the Circular and the statement is consistent with the
information of which we are aware from our audit work in the financial statements.

Bevan & Buckland

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
Langdon House

Langdon Road

Swansea

SA1 8QY

Date: 28.06.18
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UNDER THE CO-OPERATIVE AND COMMUNITY BENEFIT SOCIETIES ACT 2014

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ATEB Group Limited (“the Association”) for the year ended 31
March 2018 which comprise the consolidated and Association statements of comprehensive income,
consolidated and Associated statements of changes in reserves, the consolidated and Association statements
of financial position, the consolidated cash flow statement and its related notes. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and Association's affairs as at 31st March 2018 and
of its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act
2014, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Requirements for Registered Social
Landlords General Determination (Wales) 2015.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:
e the Boards' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

¢ the Board have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the Group and Association’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements
are authorised for issue.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Board are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on
the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated
in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Co-operative and Community Benefit
Societies Act 2014 require us to report to you if, in our opinion:
s a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained; or

e the Group and Association has not kept proper accounting records, or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the books of account of the Group and Association;
or

s we have not received all the information and explanations we need for our audit.

Responsibilities of the board

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Board (set out on page 14), the Board is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the Board determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the Board are responsible for assessing the Group and Association's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Board either intend to liquidate the group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonabie assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with [SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Association’s members, as a body, in accordance with Part 7 of the Co-
operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Association's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the association and the association's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

B@w\ + Buadend

Bevan & Buckland

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
Langdon House

Langdon Road

Swansea

SA18QY

Date: 28.06.18
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Notes
£ £

Turnover 2 24,256,630 23,178,821
Cost of Sales (6,906,172) (6,572,005)
Gross Surplus 17,350,459 16,606,816
Less: Operating costs 2 (11,286,168) (10,115,120)
Operating Surplus 5 6,064,291 6,491,696
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property. plant and equipment 6 (25,242) 36,741
Finance/Investment Income 7 32,505 53,377
Finance Costs 8 (3.494,083) (3,382,351)
Loan Breakage Fee 9 - (600,244)
Rousing Finance Grant 239,057 120,663
Donated Land Vatue Adjustment 345,134 609,066
Other Income 25,344 29,755
Corporate Rebranding (108,650) -
Surplus for the year before taxation 3,078,355 3,358,703
Taxation - -
Surplus for the year after taxation 3,078,355 3,358,703
Actuarial (loss) in respect of pension schemes (81) (63,666)
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,078,274 3,285,037
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
Companies included are as follows :

Ateb Group Limited - parent.

West Wales Care & Repair Limited - subsidiary.

Mill Bay Homes Limited - subsidiary.
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
None of the Association's activities was acquired or discontinued during the two financial years.
Pembrokeshire Housing Association Limited changed it's name to ateb Group Limited in March 2018.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES (N RESERVES
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Revenue Restricted Total
Reserve Reserve Reserves
£ £ £

Balance at 1 April 2017 22,684,628 198,287 22,882,916
Surpius from statement of comprehensive income 3,078,274 - 3,078,274
Transfer of Reserves - - -
Balance at 31 March 2018 25,762,902 198,287 25,961,190




ATEB GROUP LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Turnover

Less: Operating expenditure

Operating Surplus

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Finance/Investment Income

Finance Costs

Loan Breakage Fee

Housing Finance Grant

Donated Langd Value Adjustment

Other Income

Corporate Rebranding

Income from subsidiary company

Surplus for the year
Actuarial (loss) in respect of pension schemes

Total comprehensive income for the year

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Notes

2a

2a

5a

6a
7a
8a
8¢

8b

None of the Association's activities was acquired or discontinued during the two financial years.
Pembrokeshire Housing Association Limited changed it's name 1o ateb Group Limited in March 2018,

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Balance at 1 April 2017
Surplus from statement of comprehensive income
Transfer of Reserves

Balance at 31 March 2018

-1%a-

2018 2017
£ £
14,893,441 14,230,373
(10,423,322) (9,279,426)
4,570,119 4,950,947
{25,242) 36,741
403,808 424,286
(3,515,409) (3.368,967)
- (600,244)
239,057 120,663
345,134 609,066
25,344 29,755
(108,650} -
1,015,274 1,077,676
2,949,435 3,279,922
- (60.000)
2,949,435 3,219,922
Revenue Restricted Total
Reserve Reserve Reserves
£ £ £
22,360,078 140,000 22,500,078
2,949 435 - 2,949,435
25,308,513 140,000 25,449,513




ATEB GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2018

Property, Plant & Equipment
Housing properties - depreciated cost
Other

Investments
Homebuy loan

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables: amounts falling due within one year

Trade receivables: amounts falling due after more than one year
Cash

Trade payabies: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets
Total assets less current llabilittes

Trade payables: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net assets

Equity

Called up share capital
Restricted reserves
Revenue reserve

Notes

10
12

13
13

14
15
15

17

19
19

2018
£

188,738,818
530,627

3
3,223,423

192,492,870

5,644,491
4,502,813
3,506,510
13,177,693

26,831,507

(12,899,967)

13,931,540

206,424,410

(180,463,186)

25,981,224

34
218,213
25,742,977

2017
£

181,657,829
576,770

182,234,599

3
3,336,433

185,571,035

6,506,024
2,333.226
1,689,895
15,089,274

25,618,419

{7.554,561)

18,063,858

203,634,894

(180,751,920)

58
198,287
22,684,628

The financial statements on pages 19 to 37 were approved by the Board of Management on 28 June 2018 and were signed on its behalf by:

W AAA .
ﬁ]{ s .

Mr M Lewis, Chair

Mr D Birch, Board Member

Mr N Hampshire, Secretary



ATEB GROUP LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2018

Property, Plant & Equipment
Housing properties - depreciated cost
Other

Investments
Homebuy loan

Loans to subsidiary companies

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables: amounts falling due within one year

Trade receivables: amounts falling due after more than one year
Cash

Trade payables: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Trade payables: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net assets

Equity

Called up share capital
Restricted reserves
Revenue reserve

Notes

10a

11a

12a
12a

14b

13a

14a
14b

152

15b

2018
£

188,738,818
520,654

189,259,471

3
3,223,423

5,580,000

309,178
3,897,225
3,506,510

12,613,879

205,858,611

(180,409,063)

25,449,547

34
140,000
25,309,513

2017
£

181,657,829
567,295

182,225,124

3
3,336,433

185,561,560

5,850,000

161,582
2,320,227
1,689,896

14,672,034

18,843,739

(7,068,776)

203,186,523
(180,686,387)

58
140,000
22,360,078

Mol
v {,/ | o Mr M Lewis, Chair

‘ Mr D Birch, Board Member

Mr N Rampshire, Secretary

2Aa



ATEB GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes
Net cash inflow from
operating activities (i)

Cash flow from investing activities

Payments to acquire and develop property

Receipts from sales of Property, Plant and Equipment
Social Housing Grant and contributions received
Ofher grants and contributions received

Purchase of other fixed assets

Finance/Investment income

Net cash outflow from Investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Finance costs

Issue of share capital

Mortgage and other loans received

- housing

Finance costs of loans issued

Loans repaid

- housing

(iv)

(iv)
()

(iv)
Net cash inflow from financing

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (i) , (i)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

(9,897,354)
96,900
4,251,943
239,057
(161,792)
405,116

(3,310,641)
4
(117,565)

(2,397,781)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT - Additional Disclosure

Free cash flow
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Net cash Inflow from operating activities
Finance/Investment income

Finance costs

Adjustments for reinvestment in existing properties
Component Replacements

Purchase of other fixed assets

Free cash generated / (consumed) before loan repayments

Loans repaid (excluding revolving credit facilities and overdrafts)

Free cash generated / (consumed) after loan repayments

2018

£
8,980,530

(5,066,130)

(5,825,984)

(1,911,583)
15,089,275

2018

£
8,980,530
53,877
(2,959,402)

(1,507,279)
(162,042)

4,405,685

(2,515,346)

(11,164,694)
194,750
4,172,262
120,663
(100,480)
426,396

(3,916,875)

12,946,019
(328,432)

(2,365,849)

2017

£
6,544,754

(6,351,105)

6,334,863

6,528,513
8,560,762

2017

£
6,544,754
40,448
(3.916,875)

(1,385,803)
(100,480)

1,182,045

(2,694,281)



ATEB GROUP LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes
Net cash inflow from
operating activities (i)

Cash flow from investing activities

Payments to acquire and develop property

Receipts from sales of Property, Plant and Equipment
Social Housing Grant and contributions received
Other grants and contributions received

Purchase of other fixed assets

Financefinvestment income

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Finance cosls

Issue of share capital (iv)
Mortgage and olher loans received

- housing {iv)
Finance costs of loans issued (iv)
Loans issued - subsidiary company

Loans repaid - subsidiary company

Loans repaid

- housing (iv)

Net cash inflow from financing

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (i) , (jii)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

CASH FLOW STATEMENT - Additional Disclosure

Free cash ffow
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Finance/Investment income
Finance costs

Adjustments for reinvestment in existing properties
Component Replacements

Purchase of other replacement fixed assets

Free cash generated before loan repayments

Loans repaid (excluding revolving credit facilities and overdrafts)

Free cash generated after loan repayments

2018
£ £
8,208,432
(9,897,354)
96,900
4,251,943
239,057
(156,197)
403,808
(5,061,843)
(2,959,402)
4
(117.,565)
(5,780,000)
6,050,000
(2,397,781)
(5,204,744)
(2,058,155)
14,672,034
12,613,879
2018
£
8,208,432
403,808
(2,959,402)
(1,507,279)
(156.197)
3,989,362
(2,397,781)
1,591,581

(11,164,694)
194,750
4,172,262
120,663
(98,983)
424,286

(3.530,927)

12,946,019
(328,432)
(6,440,224)
6,180,224

(2.365,849)

2017

£
6,381,656

(6,351,717)

6,460,811

6,490.750
8,181,284

14,672,034

2017

£
6,381,656
424,286
(3,530,927)

(1.385,803)
(98,983)

1,790,229

(2,365,849)



ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(i) Reconciliation of operating surplus to net cash inflow

from operating activities 2018 2017
£ £
Operating surplus 6,064,291 6,481,697
Depreciation 3,032,367 2,822,549
Amortisation of SHG (891,261) (858,399)
Abortive development costs 45,251 17,697
Impairment of housing properties - 50,372
(Increase) in frade receivables and inventories 1,813,936 1,068,372
Increase in trade payables (790,912) (2,159,837)
Share capital cancefled (38) (13)
Charge for bad debts 37,253 41,865
Amortisation of finance issue costs 115,774 111,719
Capitalised Overheads (288,780) (303,168)
Loan breakage fee - (600,244)
Other Income 25,344 29,755
Corporate Rebranding (108,650) -
Pension deficit contribution paid (174,043) (167,611)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 8,980,530 6,544,754
{it) Analysis of changes in cash and cash equivalents during the year 2018 2017
£ £
At beginning of period 15,089,275 8,560,762
Net cash inflow/(outflow) (1,911,582) 6,528,513
At end of period 13,177,693 15,089,275
(iii) Analysts of the balances of cash and cash equivalents as shown in the balance sheet
Change in Change in
2018 2017 year 2017 2016 year
£ £ £ £ £ £
Cash 13,177,693 15,089,275 (1,911,582) 15,089,275 8,560,762 6,528,513
13,177,693 16,089,275 (1,911,582) 15,089,275 8,560,762 6,528,513

(iv) Analysis of changes in financing during the year

Share Capital

Housing Loans

2018 2017 2018 2017
£ £ £ £

At beginning of year 75 88 87,619,300 77,290,754
Cash inflow from financing 4 - 12,946,019
Cash outflow from financing (38) (13) (2,397,781) (2,365,849)
Cash outflow finance costs - - (117,565) (135,905)

41 75 85,103,953 87,735,019
Non cash items:
Debenture discount - - (4,000) (4,000)
Amortisation of finance costs - - (115,774) (111,719)
Finance Costs Accrued - - - -
At end of year 41 75 84,984,179 87,619,300



ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 March 2018

(i) Reconciliation of operating surplus to net cash inflow

from operating activities 2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities £ £
Operating surplus 4,570,119 4,950,947
Depreciation 3,027,269 2,815,948
Amortisation of SHG (891,261) (858,399)
Abortive development costs 45,251 17,697
Impairment of housing properties - 50,372
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables and inventories 1,628,597 857,179
Increase / (Decrease)in trade payables 310,545 (575,002)
Share capital cancelled (28) (13)
Charge for bad debts 37,253 41,865
Amortisation of finance issue costs 115,774 111,719
Capitalised Overheads (288,780) - (303,168)
Loan breakage fee - (600,244)
Other Income 25,344 29,755
Corporate Rebranding (108,650) -
Pension deficit contribution paid (163,000) (157,000)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 8,208,432 6,381,656
(i) Analysis of changes in cash and cash equlvalents during the year 2018 2017

£ £
At beginning of year 14,672,034 8,181,284
Net cash inflow/(outflow) (2,058,155) 6,490,750
At eng of year 12,613,879 14,672,034

(iii} Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents as shown in the Statement of Financial Position
Change In Change in
2018 2017 year 2017 2016 year

£ £ £ £ £ £
Cash 12,613,879  14.672,034 (2,058,155) 14,672,034 8,181,284 6.490,750
12,613,879 14,672,034 (2.058,155) 14,672,034 8,181,284 6,490,750

(iv) Analysis of changes In financing during the year

Share Capital Housing Loans
2018 2017 2018 2017

£ £ £ £
At beginning of year 58 71 87,619,300 77,290,754
Cash inflow from financing 4 - - 12,946,019
Cash outflow from financing (28) (13) (2,256,686) (2,365,849)
Cash outfiow from finance costs - - (117,565) {135,905)

34 58 85,245,048 87,735,019

Non cash items:
Debenture discount - (4,000) (4.000)
Amortisation of finance costs - - (115,774) (111,719)
Finance costs accrued - - - -
Other - - -
At end of year 34 58 87,619,300
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

a)

b)

d)

e)

Principal Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with applicable Accounting Standards including The Accounting Requirements for Registered Social
Landlords General Determination (Wales) 2015, Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102 and the
Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) 2014. A summary of the more important policies which
have been applied consistently are set out below.

Turnover

Turnover is stated net of voids but inclusive of service charges receivable, special needs, management
allowances receivable and amortisation of social housing grant. Service charge income is recognised at
the point at which it is collected.

Turnover for Mill Bay Homes consists of the proceeds of property sales and related income which are
recognised at the point of exchange of contract.

Housing Properties

Housing Properties are stated at cost, to include all costs incurred in the delivery of the
Association’s development programme fo include:

f) Cost of acquiring land and buildings

ii) Site development costs

iii) External and internal development on-costs

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided in accordance with FRS102 and the Statement of Recommended Practice

(SORP) 2014.

i) Housing Properties - depreciation is charged on the gross historic cost of property
components. Grant is allocated to land and the main structure of the property but not to other
components. The depreciable amounts are written off over the estimated useful economic lives
from the date of purchase/build. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Where a housing property comprises two or more major components with substantially different
useful economic lives then each component is accounted for separately. Expenditure relating to
the subsequent replacement or renewal of components is capitalised as incurred.

Housing properties are broken down into the following ten components: structure, land, kitchen,
bathroom, boiler, wet system, electrical system, windows, external doors and roof.

Leasehold Properties are depreciated over the remaining period of the lease.

Shared Ownership Properties are not depreciated on the basis that the residual

value is likely to be greater than the net cost.

ii) Other Tangible Fixed Assets
Depreciation is charged on the historic cost of other fixed assets to write them down
to their estimated residual values over their expected useful lives.

Office premises — using component accounting methodology as per housing properties. The
office premises is broken down into the following eight components: land, structure, boiler, wet
system, windows, external doors, roof & lift. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Office equipment — 10 years

Computer equipment — 4 years

Motor vehicles — evenly over 3 to 5 years to estimated residual values

Tools - 3 years

i) Replacement and Renewals
Expenditure on assets costing less than £500 (Subsidiaries £250), which do not form part of a
larger asset are written off to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which the
expenditure is incurred.

Social Housing Grant

Social Housing Grants (SHG) are capital grants receivable from the Welish Government are shown
within trade receivables in the Statement of Financial Position. Grants received for housing properties
are recognised as income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the expected life of the
asset. SHG received after the year end in respect of expenditure before the year end has been included
within Trade Receivables. Any SHG repayable or received in advance is included within Trade
Payables.
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f)

g)

h)

i)

k)

n)

o)

Development Administration

Development administration costs, including relevant office and staff overheads, are capitalised where
costs are considered to be incremental to the development programme. Non-incremental costs are
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in accordance with FRS102.

Donated Properties Restricted Reserve

The reserve represents the value of properties donated by the former Soroptomist Housing Association
(Tenby & District) Limited. It is intended to ensure the continuing use of the properties for the provision
of affordable housing.

Finance Costs
Finance costs associated with the provision of loan finance are amortised over the term of the related
loans using the effective interest rate.

Inventories
Work in progress is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value of development on proposed
schemes.

Operating Leases
Costs in respect of operating leases are amortised on a straight line basis over the lease In accordance
with FRS102.

Low Cost Home Ownership

Surplus or deficits made on either the administration of Do It Yourself Home Buy Option or on the
development and subsequent sale of Low Cost Home Ownership properties are credited or charged to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income at the time the property has been sold. The Association
accounts for Home Buy transactions by creating an investment for the loan advanced to the property
owner and deducting the grant received from the Welsh Government.

Pensions

The Group participates in the industry wide defined benefit final salary and defined contribution pension
schemes. Contributions are based on pension costs across the various participating Associations taken
as awhole. The assets of the scheme are invested and managed independently of the finances of the
Group. Pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of an independent qualified actuary
on a tri-annual basis. The present value of the past service deficit contribution is recognised as a liability
in the Statement of Financial Position. The Statement of Comprehensive Income reflects both a
financing cost in respect of the calculated present value of future contributions, as well as a charge for
pension deficit contributions arising directly in the year.

Impairment

An impairment review is undertaken on an annual basis to ensure that all properties are carried in the
Statement of Financial Position at the lower of cost or recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment 1oss is recognised in surplus or deficit in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Where assets are held for their service potential value in use
is determined by the present value of the asset's remaining service potential plus the net amount
expected to be received from its disposal. Depreciated replacement cost is taken as a suitable
measurement model. An impairment loss is reversed if the reasons for the impairment loss have
ceased to apply and included in the surplus or deficit in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Improvements
Expenditure will only be capitalised if it results in an increase to the economic performance of the asset.

Recycled Capital Grant Fund

Amounts of Social Housing Grant otherwise repayable on disposal of properties are accounted for by
credit to a Recycled Capital Grant Fund, which can be used to fund future developments that would be
eligible for Sociat Housing Grant. The fund operates on the basis of first money in, first money out
normally within a period of three years.
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE COSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P)

q)

s)

t)

u)

v)

w)

X)

Housing Finance Grant

The Housing Finance Grant (HFG) is a grant introduced by the Welsh Government in 2013/14. It is paid
by the Welsh Government to RSL’s as a contribution towards the cost of housing assets. The primary
purpose of the HFG is to subsidise the capital and interest costs for the provision of affordable housing.
The grant will be paid over a period of 30 years but delivery of the housing will take place in the first few
years of the 30 year period. The accounting treatment for the grant is covered under the Housing
Association Circutar RSL 03/13.

Donated Land Value Adjustment ($.106 Properties)

Properties or land acquired at below market price from a non-public body under s106 agreements are
treated in the following way: the difference between current value and the acquisition price is shown as
income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and PPE in the Statement of Financial Positon.

Value Added Tax

Due to the nature of the business ateb Group Limited has been granted exemption from registration.
Currently West Wales Care & Repair is under the VAT registration threshold and is not able to reclaim
VAT. The financial statements include VAT to the extent that it is suffered by the Association and the
Agency. Mill Bay Homes is registered for VAT.

Corporation Tax
The Association is a charitable organisation registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit
Societies 2014 and as such is not liable for Corporation Tax on its ordinary activities.

Loan Arrangement Fees
Loan arrangement fees and set up costs are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over
the life of the loan using an effective interest rate.

Financial Instruments

Under FRS102 loans are classified as either basic or complex. The Association has reviewed its loan
portfolio and is satisfied that all loans can be classified as basic and are recognised at amortised
historical cost.

Provisions for Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Association will be required to settle the obligation in the future and a
reliable estimate can be made of the value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and on demand deposits, together with short term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Significant Management Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate revised and in any future periods affected.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate revised and in any future periods affected.
The following are management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Assaciation that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE COSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

y)

Impairment of social housing properties

Management have to make an assessment as to whether an indicator of impairment exists. In making
this judgement, management considered the detailed criteria set out in the Statement of Recommended
Practice for Social Housing Providers (2014). Specifically this includes whether there is an impairment
indicator for a cash-generating unit. For these purposes, a cash-generating unit is defined as a property
scheme.

Depreciation

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful economic
lives based on various factors. The actual lives of the assets are re-assessed on a periodic basis and
may vary depending on the standard of the asset.

For housing property assets, the assets are broken down into components based on management’s
assessment of the properties and the specific costs incurred in replacing these components. Individual
economic lives are assigned to these components. Management have reviewed the components and
have concluded that the asset lives are appropriate.

Provisions and accruals

Management bases its judgements on the circumstances relating to each specific event and upon
currently available information. However, given the inherent difficutties in the estimation of liabilities in
these areas, it cannot be guaranteed that additional costs will not be incurred beyond the amounts
accrued.

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
The Group has obligations to pay pension benefits to certain employees. The cost of these benefits and

the present value of the obligation depend on a number of factors, including; life expectancy, salary
increases, asset valuations and the discount rate on corporate bonds. Management estimates these
factors in determining the net pension obligation in the Statement of Financial Position. The
assumptions reflect historical experience and current trends.”’

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

These comprise rent arrears, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Financial
assets are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Discounting is
omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. If there is objective evidence that there is an
impairment loss, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced accordingly. A financial asset is
derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows expire, or when the financial asset and all
substantial risks and reward are transferred.

If an arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, the financial asset is measured at the present
value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

These financial liabilities include trade and other payables and interest bearing loans and borrowings.
Non-current debt instruments which meet the necessary conditions in FRS 102, are initially recognised
at fair value adjusted for any directly attributable transaction cost and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest-related charges recognised as an
expense in finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Discounting is omitted where the
effect of discounting is immaterial.

A financial liability is derecognised only when the contractual obligation is extinguished, that is, when the

obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Going Concern
The company continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.

-26 -



0eEZL6'E £99°0Z1 (905'0LS'E) S1ES12 9691609 lozy'ssion) {500°225'9) 128'841'€2
55162 - - - - . - -
990'609 N - . . . . -
559') - - §59') - - -
(G- NE Y] - 8e6'i01) - - - - -
690°LL - - 8v0'2L (Svy'189) - PEY'8S.
$6 - - - S6 (ov®) - S€6
6Y9'IP'E £96'021 (£96'838°E) 099'C1Z £55'pIp'Y (see'zer's) (500'225'9) £88°61Y'22
L9 - . - . - - -
099'¢12 - - 099512 - - - -
[1Z4: 18 £90°0Z1 (296'390°¢) - £SS'vLp' (5£8°'2Ev'6) (500'2£5°9) €6E'619'2
@1£'05) - - - (z1e'09) @Leos) - .
(89°21) - - - 89’y (269°L4) - -
£59'02L £99'024 - - . . - -
905'E0b') - - - 909't9r’s Bop'est) (500'225'9) 020'68L'8
8¥0'058'tL - (196'99¢°€) - 810'810'S use'ize) £LE°0ET bt
600'059'} - (L96'89¢7C) - 310'6)0'S use'z’e) - £LE'QEZ' D)

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
UDIBXR) BIOJB WD 9auRULg Bsygeded a1qeAI1933) smdsns 5)502 soes

snjdsng Buisnoy 1s3s0j0) 15eu8jU| Bupesado Bunesado 101509 J3nowng
1107

SOV'6IL'E 150'652 (€80'p6Y'T) $05°2e 162°9v0'9 (89198211 (z21'908'9) 0€9'952'vZ
YrE'SZ - . - - . - ope Ll
yeL'SHE - - - - - - -
z82'L - - 282'L . - - -
92812 - 92812 - - - - -
9810} - - - 981°04kY (rv2'zo0) - aer'218
¥12'999'C 150682 (80Y'$15°E) iz $95°9T6°5 (v26'285'0)) (z£1'808'9) 099'92¥'¢Z
@rz's2) - - . . - - -
2241 - - o2 - - - -
£12'089'C 150’682 (80V'S)SE) - $95'9€6'S (Z6'€85°04) (2L4°906'9) 099'92¥°€C
(152's) - . - s2'sp) (is2'sy) -
150'682 150°682 - - - - - -
SYY'99EL - - - da: e (209°091) 221'508°'9) [RrAia]
296'860'1 - (60%'s15'¢) - LLESLO'Y (Leoaeenn) . LPY'EE6 P
206'660°) - 60P'S15°C) - VIESHOY (L20'8L£'01) - LYH'E66'pL

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
LBO|EXR) 340)3q Wes ddsueuly aqeAed EILTINEEEY) smyduns 81803 sajes

sading Buisnod 158J99U) 15319V Gugeisdo SugesadQ JLREL ] J3a0un )
8107

Asgujpio uo d.

3w J3UID
wauwisnlpy anjep puet palguog

wewdinbs pue weid ‘Apadaid jo [esodsip uo (ssop/ued
QUIDDU) |UBLUTSIAUI/IOURYLY

$1S09 J3Y10

SUONNQUILOD PUB SINBSD

saa4

S3lAIE JAYI0 WOUS UNNPUSCNXI PUE JWDIU|

sBuial Buisnoy |B120s uo sajding

1wawdinba pue Juewd "Apadold jo jesodsip o (ssopued
QWO lUaWISAY|/A0UBULS

sBuia] Buisnoy 121905 Woy) [BI0L

saipadaid Bupsnoy Jo 1Wwamedu)
SIS02 UAWADBAGD OAILOAY
awooul 12410

aJnyPUIXa pue IWOIUI JIYIO

53185 GugsNoY Wosj JUNIPUABXd pue 3wady|
sajEs BuIsNoY WOl ainipuadxe pue dW0dU|

(n)z aou sBumiay Gutsnoy |e130s woyy 210 L

uoijepowwooe Buisnoy pawas Ajng
:86UM3| Woy anypuadxs pue awodu|

uonexe) a10j3q seujANIE JBUIpIO VO snjdng

(dwooul A926a7) awoaur AU

Wauwisnipy anjeA pue pajguog

994 abeyeaig ueo?

W3awdinba pue weld *Absdoud jo |esedsip uo (ssolued
AWOOU| (WBWISIAUNIOUBYI

51509 J84I0

SUGRAQUIU0Y PUB SWEID

5333

19410 Wos§ Ny X8 pue 3wWodu|

sBuwya) Buysnoy |B120S o snjding

Juawdinba pue jueid 'Apadosd Jo jesedSIp uo (SSoNjUIRD
3WO0U] IUSWISBAU|AOUBY) S

sBuIpe( Buisnoy |20 Woy) |BI0L

dosd Buisnay jo
51500 1U3WdDI3A3D IAILQY
WO YN0

[INYPUadxa pur awadYl YD

$318s BuISNOY W) AINKPUIEXA PUE IWOIY]
sajes 6u|sNoy woly ANYPUIdXa pue AWOIY(

{1)z aou sBunya| Bursnoy 21903 WO {B10)

uonEpowwWosde Bursnoy pajues Aing
3BUlIal BUSNAY 81905 WOJj BINYPUIHAI PUE SO,

SSAUISNY JO SSB(I AQ SNIUNG PUR 1500 BuneI3dO Jasowin) jo suendjuey

@10Z YaJey ¢ papua 1eak au) 10}

SAN3IWILVLS TVIONVNIG AILVAINOSNOD JHL OL S3LON

QILINM dNOYO GALY

z



-eZ-

226'6L2°¢ 992201 £99'0Z1 (296'89€€) 98Z'vTy LP6'0SE'p

GS1'62 - - - - -

930609 - - - - -

(¥1Z'009) - - - - -

LpL'9g - - - - -

98Z'¥Zb - - - 982'vey -

81€'08L'Z 919'220') £99'0Z1 (296'89¢€'€) - Ly6'0S6'y (92v'6L2'6) CLEOEZ'YL

(21€'05) - - - - (z2€°08) (22€°08) -

(L69°21) - - - - (L69'L1) {169'£1) -

6EL'861°L 919°L10'¢ £99°0ZL - - - - -

6Y0'059'L - - (£96'89€°€) - 9LO'6LO'S (£5€'112'6) €LEDET'YL

690°059't - - (£96'89¢°€) - 910'610°G (Ls€1LZ'6) £LE0ET VL

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
saWwoH Aeg INw uRID) 83ueUly ajqeded a|qeAIa984 snjdians $)s03
snjding wal) 3Wod| Buisnoy 1531811 Isar9u| Bupesado Bunesado JpAowIn)

1102

SEP'BY6' rLTSLOTL L60'6€2 (607'S15°E) 808'€0Y 021°045°F

(059'801) - - - - -

pre'SZ - - - - -

PEL'SPE - - - - -

(2p2's2) - - - - -

808'Cov . - - 808°cop -

1PO'60E'2 vITGL0'L 150'6€2 (60¥'S15°E) - 0Z1'0L5'y (zze'ezpol) LPY'E66'Y L

(152'6p) - - - - (15z'sy) (162'5%) -

LEE'PS2'L $L2'GL0'L L50'6€2 - - - - -

296'66Q'+ - - (60¥'S15°E) - LLE'S(O'Y (120'82£°0t) L PY'CE6 Pl

796°660'} - - {60¥'515°€) - VIE'SIO'Y (LLO'8LE'0L) LPP'E66 VL

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
sawoH Aeg I\ 1URIE) 83uRUlY a|qeAed 2|qeAIad8s snidans S1802
sn|ding WOoJS 8WOdU| Bursnoy Jsasay| 153490U| BunesadQ buneisdQ laaown)

2102

sBumay fuysnoy (e190s wo snjding

3wodU| JAYIO

wawnsnipy aneA pue’ psjeuoq

934 afiexealg ueon

Juawdinb3 pue jue|d ‘Ayadosd jo [esodsip Lo (SSO|)UIRD

AWI0dU( JUBLLYSAAUYSIUBUIH

sBuipay Bursnoy |e190S Woly |Rj0L

saruadoid Buisnoy jo Jusuuredw

$1S00 JUaWdO|aAaP AAINOQY

3WooU! IO

2uMIpuadxd Pue AWDIU( JAYIO

{$1)ez azou sBumya| Buisnoy |e1dos woly [p3o ]
uonepowwoode SUIsnoy pajudl Ajn4y

sbunye| Buisnoy [B)20S wiol) 3unypuadxa pue auiodu}

sBbumal Buysnoy jeraos uo smding

Buipueigay djesodio)

2W0dU| RO

Juswisnipy anjea pue pajeuoq

234 abeyeaig ueo

Juawdinba pue ed ‘Apadosd Jo [esodsip uo (ssojyued

SWIODU| JUBW)SIAU|/AOUBUIY

sBupa| Buysnoy |B1I0S Wolj B0

saipadaid Buisnoy jo Juawedw

$)S00 WaWDoPASP IAJOqY

awoaul 1BYIO

3inypuadxa pue awoIUl 13Y10

(11)ez ayou sBunyye| Bujsnoy |ejaos wolg o]
uonepowuwsoae Buisnoy paiuas Ajing

sBumaj Bursnay |e190S WIOJ) BINYPUICX3 PUE BLIOIU|

$SAUISNG Jo $Se|d AqQ sN|ding pue 1509 GupeladQ Janouin] jo suenoed

810Z Y2JBW LE PAPUa Jeak ay) 10)
SINIWALVYLS TVIONVNIJd 3HL Ol SILON

GILIANM dNOYD ILY

(1) ez



£v9'896't 629°¢el ¥L0'ses'y
62.'192'6 608'L6L 126'690'6
Go8'LY - Go8'Ly
9v2'92.2'2 £20'vL €22'2LL'2
989'281°1L - 989'z8L'L
0S.'v¥0'2 090'9l 169'820°2
616'8¥1°C LYS'vEL 8EY L0
€02 LLL L S81°22 810°060°L
3 3 3
lelol 6uisnoH Buisnoy
papoddng paisilays 3
SPaaN |eJaudg

2102
£EE'62 - £€E°'62
€LE€'0€2'v1 8EY'GEE SC6'P06'EL
66¢'9G8 PE9'EL S9/'vv8
iv1'18 - JAZNA:
122'982'¢) P08'LLE £2P'2LB'CL
€0Z'LLL'L q81°22 81L0'060°L
vz0'291°CL 6L9'v82 SoP'ees' Ll

3 3 3
18301 BuisnoH Buisnoy
pajoddng palsjjays B
Spaap |esausn)
2302

-8¢-

L/E'SL9'Y 8/€'2S1L £€66'291'v
L20'8LE0L 209'961 69t'L8L 0L
£62'2¢ - £GZ'/E
v61'/88'C p00‘GL 0612282
66.L'ZLS'L - 661'71G6°)
090'tEt’ 296'0Z 86¥'ZL¥'C
851'v1e'e 9lLL'62l Zp0's8L'e
L09'€6L'L 0Z6'LE 189°1L91°L
3 3 3
|e10) Buisnop Buisnoy
payoddng paJalvys 9
SpaaN |elauac

8102
200°0€ - 200°0¢
Zrb'e66' v 086'8v¢ 29V Pra'pL
120'0¢ - 120°0€
19Z' 168 yEQ'E) 829',/8
L81°6G - 18165
826'CL0'pL 9pe'Gee 286'2/9'EL
L09'eBL'L 026'LE 189'19L'L
1ZE'BLB'CL 9Z¥'€0¢g G68'GLG'TL

3 3 3
1ejol Bursnoy Buisnoy
pauoddng paldy|ays
SPaaN (BlJauds)
8L0Z

sBums| Bursnoy je1vos uo snidins Bugesado

sBuia| Businoy |100s uo s3s0o buneladp

$1g9p peq WoJ) Sasso

sojuadold Buisnoy o uoneialdsq
siiedads Jofepy

90UBLRUIBW BUNNOY
Juswabeuep

sabieyod aoInIBg

sBu3yd] wouy s3sod Gugelado

$8SSO] PIOA

wesb uoisnpul jeiibig
uollesiyowy 9HS
S38OIAI9S Loddns Loy SWoodu|

sabieys aonuag
. SOSSO| PIOA JO 18U B|qBAI2D8I JUDY

sBuige| Buisnoy |e120S woly JaA0uIN]

8102 Y4B LE Papua Jeak ayy 1o}

SINIWILYLS TVIONVNI4 3LVvAIMOSNOD 3HL OL S3LON

Q3LINM dNOAO 31V

(mz

tmz



£p9'896'y 629'€EL 710'5¢8'Y
6¢.'192'6 608'16L 1Z6'690'6
GOg'LY - S98'Ly
9p2'9TL'T £20'7L £€22'C1L'T
989'Z8L 'L - 9897811
0S2'v%0'T 030'91 169'820'2
6/6'8¥L'C LyS'veL 8EY'r10'2
€0z LLL'L S81'/¢C 840'060'L
3 3 3
12301 Buisnoy Buisnon
papoddng palajays 7
SpPa3N |eJausn)

1102
£EE'62 - ££5'62
€LE'0€2'vL el eyAy GE6'P0B'EL
66£'858 vE9'CL 59/'v8
Lp1'18 - PAZIA:
LZTY8T'EL 08 LLE £TIY'TL6'TL
€0g' LI S81'42 810'060°L
p20'/9L'2L 619'782 S0P'788 L1

3 3 3
|ejol puisnoy Buisnoy
pauoddng pasalays 9
SpasN [eJsua)
1102

-BQe -

LIE'SIO'Y 8.€°ZS) £66'CoV'y
120'8.€°0L 209'961 69%'18L'04
T4V - INTAAS
v61'/88'C 00'S! 061'2/8'C
66.'CLS'L - 66L'21S'L
090'cEv‘T 296'0Z 86v'ZIv'e
8SL'PLE'C gLl'ezl ZP0'G8L'e
L09'¢€BL’L 0Z6°LE 189°191'Y
3 3 3
lejol Buisnoy BursnoH
papjoddng pailajjays »
SPOaN |ed3uan)

8102
200'0€ - 200°0¢
Lyb'c66'rL 086'8YE 29V Pro'vL
1/0°0¢ - 120°0¢
192168 re9'cl 829'//8
181'6S - 18165
8C6'ZL0'PlL ope'gee 286°2/9'¢)
209'¢61°L 026°'LE 289°L9L°L
LZE'6LB'ZL 9Zp'€0¢ G68'G1LG'TY

3 3 3
1e3o BuisnoH Buisnoy
pajuoddng paidydays 3
SpasN Jelaudn
8102

sbBunys| Buisnoy [e1os uo snjdins Supesadp

sbums) Buisnoy |ewos uo $)sod Bunelssdo
S)Q8p peq ul0l) SOSSOT

saluado.d Buisnoy jo uaneaidaq
sJsiedal soley

80UBUSIUIBW SUNOY

Juswabeuepy
sabJeyo aoIARg

sbula) Buisnoy |e100s wouiy s}soa bunerado (1) ez

$3SS0 PIOA
sbumys) Bulsnoy [BOoS woly Jaacuin
juelb uoisnpul (eyIbig

uopesiowy OHS
$3821AJ3S poddns Woy) swodu|

sabieyd 20IA8S
» S9SSO| PIOA JO 18U S|QBAI9D3) Jusy

sBupya) Buisnoy [B120S wouy Jaaouin] (i) eg

8107 Y4B L€ Papua Jeak ay) 10}
SLIN3W3ILVLS TVIONVNId 3HL OL SILON

31N dNOYO g31v



ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Officers' and Senior Executives' Emoluments

Officers and Senior Executives are defined as the members of the Board of Management, Chief Executive and

the Directors of ateb Group Limited.

2018
£
Emoluments (including pension contributions and benefits
in kind). 380,637

During the year the emoluments (excluding pension contributions) of the Chief Executive who was the
highest paid Senior Executive was £111,760 (2017 : £111,045).
The Senior Executives who served during the year were renumerated as follows:

2018
£60,001 to £70,000 1
£70,001 to £80,000 -
£80,001 to £80,000 1
£90,001 to £100,000 1
£100,001 to £110,000 -
£110,001 to £120.000 1

2018 reflects 48 months of Senior Executives’ management cost (2017 : 48 months).
None of the Board received any emoluments during the year.

The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the SHPS final salary contributory pension scheme.

Staff numbers and cost

The average number of full time equivalent persons (inciuding Senior Executives) employed during the year

by the Group was :

2018
Office staff 73.91
Direct Labour 41.00
Cleaning staff 0.60
115.51
2018
Staff costs for the above persons were: £
Wages and salaries 3,137,687
Sogcial security costs 292,461
Pension costs (note 20) 205,952
3,636,099

2017

—_

-

2017
£
2,872,165
278,260
188,212
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Officers' and Senior Executives' Emoluments
Officers and Senior Executives are defined as the members of the Board of Management, Group Chief Executive and
the Directors.

2018
£
Emoluments (including pension contributions and benefits
in kind) 390,637

During the year the emoluments (exclugding pension contributions) of the Chief Executive who was the
highest paid Senior Executive was £111,760 (2017 : £111,045).
The Senior Executives who served during the year were remunerated as follows:

2018
£60,001 to £70,000 1
£70,001 to £80,000 -
£80,001 to £90,000 1
£50,001 to £100,000 1
£100,001 to £110,000 -
£110,001 to £120,000 1

2018 reflects 48 months of Senior Executives’ management cost (2017 : 48 months).
None of the Board received any emoluments during the year.
The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the SHPS fina! salary contributory pension scheme.

Staff numbers and cost
The average number of full time equivalent persons (including Senior Executives) employed during the year was:

2018
Office staff 59.21
Direct Labour 38.00
Cleaning staff 060
95.81

2018

Staff costs for the above persons were: £

Wages and salaries 2,616,936
Social security costs 247,713
Pension costs (note 20a) 181,109
3,045,758

2017
£

428,295

2017

-

- A

2,456,119
230,058
166,080



ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2018
Operating surplus

The operating sumplus is stated after charging/(crediting):
Depreciation

Finance issue costs

Debenture discount charge

Auditors remuneration

- Intheir capacity as auditors, including VAT

- Inrespect of other services, including VAT

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Surplus / (loss) on sale of properties
Surplus on sale of vehicles/equipment

Finance/Investment Income

Finance/Investment Income

Finance Costs

On loans repayabte in instaiments wholly or partly in
more than § years

On loans repayable other than in instalments wholly
or parily in more than 5 years

Loan Breakage Fee

During FY 2016-17, the Association refinanced a fixed interest loan with the
Co-operative Bank PLC. The bank gave notice of its intention to seek
repayment of the £8m loan in 2023. The two key elements to re-financing
risk are the availability of inance when repayment becomes due and the

level of interest rates prevailing at the time.

Independent external advice was obtained. In order to mitigate risk exposure,
the decision was taken {o refinance the bank loan with a new long term loan
from BAE Systems Pension Fund at a fixed rate of interest. This resulted in a

break cost of £600k.

Taxation

Mitl Bay Homes Limited is the only company liable for corporation tax. The other companies are registered
with charitable rules under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and are not liable for

corposation tax on their normal activities.

2018
£
3,032,391
233,339
4,000

(25,242)

(25,242)

2017
£
2,872,991
183,508
4.000

13,129
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Operating surplus

The operating surplus is stated after charging/(crediting):
Depreciation

Finance issue costs

Debenture discount charge

Auditors remuneration

- In their capacity as auditors, including VAT
In respect of other services, including VAT

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, ptant and equipment

Surplus/(loss) on sale of properties
Surplus on sale of vehicles/equipment

Finance/lnvestment Income

Finance/investment Income

Finance Costs
On loans repayable in instaiments wholly or partly in
more than 5 years

On loans repayable other than in instalments wholly
or partly in more than 5 years

Transfer from subsidiary company

Gift Aid payment

Loan Breakage Fee

During FY 2016-17, the Association refinanced a fixed interest loan with the

Co-operative Bank PLC. The bank gave notice of its intention to seek

repayment of the £8m loan in 2023. The two key elements to re-financing

risk are the availability of finance when repayment becomes due and the

level of interast rates prevailing at the time.

Independent exteral advice was obtained. In order to mitigate risk exposure,
the decision was taken to refinance the bank loan with a new long term loan
from BAE Systems Pension Fund at 2 fixed rate of interest. This resulted in a

break cost of £600k.

Taxation

Due to its charitable status, the Association is not liable for Corporation Tax

on its normai activities.

-30a-

2018
£

3,027,269
233,339
4,000

10,440

2017
£

2,866,321
183,508
4,000
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2018
Property, Plant and Equipment - Housing Propertles

Housing properties
held for letting

Under
Completed Construction
£ £

Cost
At 1 April 2017 192,809,029 10,224,100
Additions 4,146,403 5,617,855
Reclassification 5,263,731 (5,263,731)
Disposals (635,547) -
At 31 March 2018 201,583,616 10,578,224
Depreciation
At 1 April 2017 (21,375,301)
Charged for the year (2.753,180)
Disposals 339,272
At 31 March 2018 (23,789,209)
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 177,794,408 10,578,224

At 31 March 2017 171,433,728 10,224,100

The total net book value of housing properties comprises:

Freehold property
Long leasehold property
Short leasehoid property

Shared ownership properties

heid for letting

Completed
£

366,185

366,185

2018
£
188,359,482
54,294
325,042

Development administration expenditure and other indirect costs capitalised during the year amounted

to £288,780 (2017 : £303,168).

Interest capitalised during the year amounted to £nil (2017 : £nil).

Component Replacement spend for the year amounted to £1,507,279 (2017: £1,385,803)
Housing Properties includes Land with a carrying value of £26,284,116 (2017: £25,028,206)

Total
€

203,033,128
10,130,443

(635.547-)

(21,375,301)
(2,753,180)
339,272

2017
£
181,278,492
54,294
325,042
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2018

Property, Plant and Equipment - Housing Properties

Cost

At 1 April 2017
Additions
Reclassification
Disposals

At 31 March 2018
Depreciation

At 1 April 2017
Charged for the year
Disposals

At 31 March 2018

Net book value
At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

Housing properties
held for letting

Under
Completed Construction
£ £
192,809,029 10,224,100
4,146,403 5,617,855
5,263,731 {5.263,731)
(635,547) -
201,583,616 10,578,224
(21,375,301)
(2,753,180)
339,272
(23.789,209) -
177,794,408 10,578,224
171,433,728 10,224,100

The total net book value of housing properties comprises:

Freehold property

Long leasehold property
Short leasehold property

Shared ownership properties
held for letting

Completed
£

366,185

366,185

2018

188,359,482
54,294
325,042

Development administration expenditure and other indirect costs capitalised during the year amounted

to £288,780 (2017 : £303,168).

Interest capitalised during the year amounted to £nil (2017 . £nil).
Component Replacement spend for the year amounted to £1,507,279 (2017: £1,385,803)
Housing Properties includes Land with a carrying value of £26,284,116 (2017: £25,028,206)

-31a-

Total
£

203,033,129
10,130,443

(635,547)

(21,375,301)
(2.753,180)
339,272

2017

181,278,493
54,294
325,042
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2018

Property, Plant & Equipment - Other Fixed Assets

Cost

At 1 April 2017
Additions
Disposals/Write off/Ad].

At 3t March 2018
Grants and contributions
At 1 April 2017
Additions

Disposals

At 31 March 2018
Depreciation

At 1 April 2017
Charged for the year
Disposals/Write off/Adj.
Al 31 March 2018

Net book value
At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

Investments

Cost of Home Buy Loans

Freehold Tools & Motor Computer
Offices Equipment vehicles Equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £
490,981 564,232 23,743 569,272 1,638,228
- 40,170 51,421 70,451 162,042
. - (14,545) - 249 (14,794)
490,981 594,402 60,619 639,473 1,785,475
- (44,101) (44,101)
(44,101) (44,101)
(232.303) (441,877) (21,444) (365,835) (1,061,458)
(9.465) (36,362) (8.879) (109,305) (164,012)
. - 14,545 177 14,722
(241,768) (478,238) (15,778) (474,964) (1,210,748)
249,213 116,164 740 164,509 530,628
258,679 112,356 2,299 203,437 576,770
2018 2017
£ £
3,223,423 3,336,433
3,223,423 3,336,433

The above investments represent a 30% and 50% interest in 101 (2017: 104) properties acquired under the Welsh Government Low Cost

Home Ownership Schemes.

Inventories

Completed properties held for sale
Schemes under construction

2018
£
1,075,154
4,569,337

2017
£
1,903,375
4,602,649

6,506,024
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2018

Property, Plant & Equipment - Other Fixed Assets

Cost

At 1 April 2017
Additions
Disposals/Write off/Adj.

At 31 March 2018
Grants and Contributions
At 1 April 2017
Additions

Disposals

At 31 March 2018
Depreciation

At 1 April 2017
Charged for the year
Disposals/Write off/Ad).
At 31 March 2018

Net book value
At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

Investments

Cost of Home Buy Loans

Freehold Tools & Motor Computer
Offices Equipment vehicles Equipment Tota!
£ £ £ £ £
490,981 517,571 23,743 556,266 1,588,561
- 35,822 51,421 68,954 156,197
- - (14,545) - (14,545)
480,981 553,393 60,619 625,220 1,730,213
. (44,101) - (44,101)
- - (44,101) - (44,101)
(232,303) (412,503) (21,444) (355,017) (1.021.266)
(8,465) (32,843) (8,879) (107,549) (158,737)
- - 14,545 - 14,545
(241,767) (445,346) (15,778) (462,566) (1,165,458)
249214 108,046 740 162,654 520,654
258,679 105,068 2,299 201,249 567,285
2018 2017
£ £
3,223,423 3,336,433
3,336,433

The above investments represent a 30% and 50% interest in 101 (2017: 104) properties acquired under the Welsh Government Low Cost

Home Ownership Schemes.

Shares in subsidiary companies :
Mili Bay Homes Limited
West Wales Care & Repair Limited
Effective Building Solutions Limited

inventories

Work in Progress

2018

2017
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NQOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Trade Recefvables
Amounts falling due within one year

Arrears of Rent and Service Charges
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts

Prepayments and accrued income

Social Housing Grant and capital contributions receivable
Housing Finance Grant

Other receivables

Other receivables includes £1,161 (2017 : £1,985) in respect of car loans to staff for assisted car purchase repayable within

424,074
1,745,184
2,004,788
59,774
178,993

one year. The number of staff included in the scheme at 31 March 2018 was 1 (2017: 2).

Amounts falling due after more than one year

Housing Finance Grant

Rent Arrears - Long Term Repayment Plans

Trade Payables
Amounts falling due within one year

Rental income prepaid

Accrued interest

Amounts owed in respect of housing development
Taxation, pension and social securitly

Social Housing Grant and contributions received in advance
Other payables

Accruals and deferred income

Housing loans

Grant Recycling Fund

SHG - Deferred Income

Annual Leave Accrual

Past Service Pension Liability

Movement in amortisation of oan acquisition cost

2018
£
3,498,841

184,358
862,488
425,180
109,788

4,553,108
115,922

1,803,409

3,207,308
484,741
918,398

46,146
188,027
1,093

2017
£
425,337
(54,500)
370,837
1,130,857

29,954
792.578

2017
£
1,682,833

171,920
310,482
804,713
103,151

69.700
1,671,338
2,727 461
586,696
888,982
47,406
173,760

(1.048)
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Trade Receivables

Amounts falling due within one year
Arrears of Rent and Service Charges
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts

Prepayments and accrued income

Inter-company debtors - subsidiary companies

Social Housing Grant and capital contributions receivable
Housing Finance Grant

Other receivables

Other receivables includes £1,161 (2017 : £1,995) in respect of car loans 1o staff for assisted car purchase repayable within

2018
£

483,074

(59.000)

424,074

107,893

1,105,140

2,094,788

59,774

105,757

one year. The number of staff included in the scheme at 31 March 2018 was 1 (2017: 2).

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Loan to subsidiary company

Housing Finance Grant

Rent Arrears Long Term Repayment Plans

Trade Payables
Amounts falling due within one year

Rental income prepaid

Accrued interest

Amounts owed in respect of housing development
Taxation, pension and socia! security

Social Housing Grant ang capita!l contributions received in advance
Inter-company creditors - subsidiary companies
Other payables

Accruals and deferred income

Housing foans

Grant Recycling Fund

SHG - Deferred Income

Movement in amortisation of loan acquisition cost
Annual Leave Year £nd Accrual

Past Service Pension liability

- 33a-

2018
£
5,580,000

3,498,841

3,498,841

2018
£

184,358
862,488
258,568
109,788
4,553,108
804
17,171
1,721,487
3,207.308
484,741
918,308
1,093
35,452
176,535

2017
£
425,337
(54,500)
370,837
135,436

1,074,672

29,954
709,328

2,320,227

2017
£
5,850,000

2017
£
171,820
310,482
635,193
103,151

13,022

1,435,559

2,727,461
586,696
888,982

(1,048)
34,642
162,717
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Trade Payables

Amounts falling due after one year 2018 2017
£ £
Housing Loans 81,916,873 84,889,771
Grant Recycling - -
SHG - Defefred Income 94,397,020 91,411,900
Homebuy Grant - Deferred Income 3,223,423 3,336,433
Past Service Pension Liability 925,870 1,113,816
180,463,188 180,751,920
Housing Loans
Housing loans are secured by specific charges on the Association’s housing properties and are repayable as
Repayable by instalments 2018 2017
£ £
One year or less 3,207,308 2,727 461
Between one and five years 10,440,507 10,989,636
In five years or more 71,367,606 73,779,321
85,015,421 87,496,418
Finance Costs (774,721) {856,145)
84,240,700 86,640,273
Repayable otherwise than by instaiments in more than five 2018 2017
years £ £
in more than five years 1,000,000 1,000,000
Less : Debenture Discount Account (16,972) (20,972)
983,028 979,028
Long term finance from Banks, Building Societies and Bond providers represent loans taken out over a 5 to 33 year period.
At 31 March 2018 of the total loans outstanding the ratio of fixed rate loans to variable rate inlerest loans
was 76:24 (2017: 67:33). At the year-end interest rates ranged from 2.76% t0 9.87%.
SHG and other grants
Housling properties Shared ownership properties
held for letting held for letting
Under
Completed Construction Completed Total
£ £ £ £
SHG at 1 April 2017 94,471,568 5,707,728 100,179,296
HF G at 1 April 2017 1,793,909 - 1,793,909
Additions 542,880 3,456,906 3,999,786
Reclassification 1,921,250 (1,921,250) - -
Disposals (107,897) - - (107,897)
At 31 March 2018 98,621,710 7,243,384 - 105,865,093
At 31 March 2017 96,265,477 5,707,728 - 101,973,205
Amortisation
At 1 April 2017 (9,672,321) - - (9,672,321)
Charged for the year (891,261) - - (891,261)
Disposals 13,907 - - 13,907
At 31 March 2018 (10,549,675) - - (10,549,675)
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 88,072,035 7,243,384 - 95,315,418
At 31 March 2017 86,593,156 5,707,728 - 92,300,884
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Trade Payables
Amounts falling due after more than one year

Housing Loans
SHG - Deferred Income

Homebuy Grant - Deferred Income
Past Service Pension liability

foltows:
Repayable by instalments
One year or less

Between one and five years
In five years or more

Finance Costs

Repayable otherwise than by instalments in more than five
years

in more than five years
Less : Debenture Discount Account

Non-Housing Loans

Long term finance from Banks, Building Societies and Bond providers represent [oans taken out over a 5 to 33 year period.

2018
£
81,916,873
94,397,020
3,223,423
871,748

180,409,086

2018
£
3,207,308
10,440,507
71,367,606
85.015,421
(774.721)

2018

1,000,000
(16,9872)

At 31 March 2018 of the total loans outstanding the ratio of fixed rate loans to variable rate interest loans

was 76:24 (2017: 87.33). At the year-end interest rates ranged from 2.76% to 9.87%.

SHG and other grants
Housing properties
held for letting

Under
Completed Construction
£ £

SHG at 1 April 2017 94,471,568 5,707,728
HFG at 1 April 2017 1,793,909 -
Additions 542,880 3,456,906
Reclassification 1,921,250 (1,921,250)
Disposals (107,897) -
At 31 March 2018 98,621,710 7,243,384
At 31 March 2017 96,265,477 5,707,728
Amortisation
At 1 April 2017 (9,672,321) -
Charged for the year (891,261) -
Disposals 13,907 -
At 31 March 2018 (10,549,675) -
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 88,072,035 7,243,384
At 31 March 2017 86,593,156

5,707,728

-34a-

Shared ownership properties

held for letting

Completed

2017
£
84,889,771
91,411,900
3,336,433
1,048,283

2017
£
2,727,461
10,989,636
73,779,321
87,496,418
(856,145)

2017

1,000,000
(20,972)

Total
£
100,179,296
1,793,909
3,999,786

(107,897)

105,865,093

(9,672,321)
(891,261)
13,907

(10,549,675)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Grant Recycling Fund

2018
£
Opening Balance 586,696
Property Sales 202,725
Recycled to Devetopment (304,680)
Closing Balance 484,741
Homebuy Grant
2018
£
3,223,423
Homebuy Grant 3,223,423
Called up share capital - non equity 2018
£
Aliotted isssued and fully paid
At the beginning of the year 58
tssued 4
Cancelled (28)
At the end of the year 34
Members hold shares of £1. The shares are non-transferable and non-redeemable
and carry no rights to receive either income or capital payments.
Reserves
At 1 April Surplus for Transfer
2017 the year of reserves
£ £ £
Revenue Reserve 22,495,181 3,078,274 (33,585)
Designated Reserves
Business Continuity 189,448 - 13,660
Restricted Reserves
Donated Properties 140,000 - -
Hardship Fund 58,287 - 2,385
Legacy Fund - - 17,540
Total 22,882,916 3,078,274 -
Analysed as:

Revenue Reserve
Designated Reserves
Restricted Reserves

Designated Reserves are unrestricted reserves which are earmarked for spegcific purposes.

Capital Commitments 2018

£
Capital & devetopment expenditure that has been contracted for but
has not been provided for in the financial statements: 24,577,296
Capitat & devefopment expenditure that has been authorised by the
Board of Management but has not yet been contracted for: 30,661,324

2017
£
503,645
212,790
(129,739)
586,696
2017
£
3,336,433
3,336,433
2017
£
71
(13)
58
At 31 March
2018
£
25,539,869
203,108
140,000
60,673
17,540
25,861,190
25,539,869
203,108
218,213
25,961,190
2017
£
10,544,013
15,795,218

The commitments at 31 March 2017 will be funded from grants from the Welsh Government, or local authorities,

the balance being funded from private finance loans and sales under the Low Cost Home Programme.
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15e Grant Recycling Fund

2018 2017
£ £
Opening Balance 586,696 503,645
Property Sales 202,725 212,790
Recycled to Development (304,680) (129,739)
Closing Balance 484,741 586,696
15f Homebuy Grant
2018
£
3,223,423
Homebuy Grant 3,223,423
16a Called up share capital - non equity 2018 2017
£ £
Allotted issued and fully paid
At the beginning of the year 58 Al
Issued 4 -
Cancelled (28) (13)
At the end of the year 34 58
Each member of the Association holds one share of £1. The shares are non-transferable and non-redeemable and carry no rights to receive
either income or capital payments.
17a Reserves
At 1 April Surplus for Transfer At 31 March
2017 the year of reserves 2018
£ € £ £
Revenue Reserve 22,360,078 2,949,435 - 25,309,513
Restricted Reserves
Donated Properties 140,000 - - 140,000
Total 22,500,078 2,949 435 - 25,449,513
Analysed as:
Revenue Reserve 25,309,513
Restricted Reserves (Donated Properties) 140,000
25,449,513
18a Capital Commitments 2018 2017
£ £
Capital expenditure that has been contracted for but
has not been provided for in the financial statements 16,347,765 5,424,935
Capital expenditure that has been authorised by the
Board of Management but has not yet been
contracted for: 20,839,650

The commitments at 31 March 2018 will be funded from grants from the Weish Government, or jocal authorities,
the balance being funded from private finance toans and sales under the Low Cost Home Ownership Programme.
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Operating leases
The companies hold photocopiers, telecommunications equipment and vehicles on non-cancellable operating leases. At the
Statement Of Financial Position date the commitments (inc VAT) under such leases are as follows:

2018 2017
£ £
Comittment:
Within one year 112,663 81,605

Within two to five years

Pensions Obligations
The Association participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (the Scheme), a multi-employer scheme which provides
benefits to some 500 non-associated employers. The scheme is & defined benefit scheme in the UK.

The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30 December 2005.
This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial standards issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK.

The scheme is classified as a ‘last man standing arrangement’. Therefore the company is potentially liable for other participating
employers’ obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the scheme.
Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on annuity purchase basis on withdrawa! from
the scheme.

A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carries out with an effective date of 30 September 2014. This actuarial vatuation was
was certified on the 23 November 2015 and showed assets of £3,123 m, liabilities of £4,446m and a deficit of £1,323m. To
eliminate this funding shortfall, the trustees ang the participating employers have agreed that additional contributions will be paid, in
combination from all employers, to the scheme as follows:

Deficit Contributions

Tier 1 £40.6m per annum
From 01 April 2016 to 30 September 2020: (payable monthly and increasing by 4.7% each year on 01 April.)
Tier 2 £28.6m per annum
From 01 April 2016 to 30 September 2023: (payable monthly and increasing by 4.7% each year on 01 April.)
Tier 3 £32.7m per anoum
From 01 April 2016 to 30 September 2026: (payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year on 01 April.)
Tier 4 £31.7m per annum

From 01 April 2016 to 30 September 2026: (payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year on 01 April.)

Note that the schemes previous valuation was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2011; this valuation was
certified on 17 December 2012 and showed assets of £2,062m, liabilities of £3,097m and deficit of £1,035m. To eliminate
this funding shortfall, payments consisted of the Tier 1,2 & 3 deficit contributions.

Where the scheme is in deficit and where the Association has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement, the Association
recognises a liability for this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of the deficit reduction contributions
payable under the agreement that relates to the deficit. The present value is calculated using the discount rate based on an
AA corporate bong yield curve. The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as a finance cost.

Present Values of Provision 31 March 2018

£

31 March 2017
£

31 March 2016
£

Present Value of Provision 1,113,614

1,287,576

1,391,521

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Provisions

Period Ending
31 March 2018

Period Ending
31 March 2017

£ £
Provision at the start of period 1,287,576 1,391,521
Unwinding of the discount factor (interest expense) 15,940 27,601
Deficit contribution paid (174,043) (167,611)
Remeasurements - impact of any change in assumptions (15,859) 36,085
Remeasurements - amendments to the contribution schedule - -
Provision at end of period 1,113,614 1,287,576

Statement of Comprehensive income Impact

Interest Expense
Remeasurements - impact of any change in assumptions
Remeasurements - amendments to the contribution schedule

Period Ending
31 March 2018
£
26,940
33,141

31 March 2017
% per annum

Period Ending
31 March 2017
£
27,601
36,065

0

31 March 2016
% per annum

Assumptions 31 March 2018
% per annum
Rate of discount 1.72

1.33

2.06

The discount rates shown up are the equivalent single discount rates which, when used to discount the future recovery plan
contributions due, would give the same results as using a full AA corporate bond yield curve to discount the same recovery
plan contributions
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1%a Operating leases
The Association has photocopiers, telecommunications equipment and vehicles on non-cancellable operating leases. At the
Statement Of Financial Position date the Associalion had annual commitments (inc. VAT) under such leases as follows:

2018 2017
£ £
Commitment:
Within one year 93,759 65,874

Within two to five years 218,930 139,467

20a Pensions Obligations
The Association participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (the Scheme), a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some
500 non-associated employers. The scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK.
It is not possible for the company to obtain sufficient information to enable it o account for the scheme as a defined benefit scheme.
Therefore it accounts for the scheme as a defined contribution scheme.
The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30 December 2005.
This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council,
set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK.
The scheme is classified as a 'last man stanging arrangement’. Therefore the company is potentially liable for other participating employers'
obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the scheme.
Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme.
A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carnied out with an effective date of 30 September 2014. This actuarial valuation was certified on the
23 November 2015 and showed assets of £3,123m, fiabilities of £4,446m and a deficit of £1,323m. To eliminate this funing shortfall, the trustees
and the participating employers have agreed that additional contributions will be paid, in combination from all employers, to the scheme as foliows:

Deficit Contributions

Tier 1

from 01 April 2016 1o 30 September 2020: £40.6m per annum (payable monlihly and increasing by 4.7% each year on 01 Agpril.)
Tier 2

From 01 April 2016 to 30 September 2023: £28.6m per annum (payable monthly and increasing by 4.7% each year on 01 April.)
Tier 3

From 01 April 2016 to 30 September 2026 £32.7m per annum (payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year on 01 April.)
Tier 4

From 01 April 2016 to 30 September 2026: £31.7m per annum (payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year on 01 April.)

Note that the schemes previous valuation was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2011; this valuation was certified on 17 Decembe)
2012 and showed assets of £2,062m, liabilities of £3,097m and deficit of £1,035m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, payments consisted of the
Tier 1,2 & 3 deficit contributions.

Where the scheme is in deficit and where the Association has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement, the Association recognises a liability for
this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of the deficit reduction contributions payable under the agreement that relates to
the deficit. The present value is calculated using the discount rate detailed in these disclosures. The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised
as a finance cost.

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Present Values of Provision 31 March 2016

£

£

£

Present Value of Provision 1,048,000

1,211,000

1,308,000

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Provisions

Period Ending
31 March 2018

Period Ending
31 March 2017

£ £
Provision at the start of period 1,211,000 1,308,000
Unwinding of the giscount factor (interest expense) 15,000 26,000
Deficit contribution paid (163,000} (157,000)
Remeasurements - impact of any change in assumptions (15,000) 34,000
Remeasurements - amendments to the contribution schedule . -
Provision at end of period 1,048,000 1,211,000

Statement of Comprehensive income impact

Interest Expense
Remeasurements - impact of any change in assumptions
Remeasurements - amendments to the contribution schedule

31 March 2018
% per annum

Assumptions

Period Ending
31 March 2018
£
26,000
34,000

31 March 2017
% per annum

Period Ending
31 March 2017
£
26,000
34,000

31 March 2016
% per annum

Rate of discount 1.72

1.33

2.08

The discount rates shown up are the equivalent single discount rates which, when used to discount the future recovery pian contributions due,
would give the same results as using a full AA corporate bond yielg curve to discount the same recovery plan contributions.
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Contingent Liabilities
Social Housing Grant may become repayable in the following circumstances:
- Disposal of a property (including disposals on assisted ownership terms) other than to another RSL;
- Change of use of a property to a use that would not be eligiable for grant;
- Change of use of a property to a use that would be eligible for a lesser amount of grant;
- Demolition of a property where the site does not form part of a new social housing development by a RSL;
- A disposal given rise to a repayment of discount under Schedule 2 to the Housing Associations Act 1985.

An employer debt could arise on withdrawal from the Association's final satary pension through the Social Housing Pension Scheme
(SHPS). The estimated employer debt for the Association on withdrawa! from the SHPS plan based on the financial position of the
scheme as at 30 September 2014 was £8,856,062. As events which could crystallise the debt are unlikely to arise in the
foreseeable future, no specific provision is deemed necessary.

Units In Management
2018 2017
At end of year 2,690 2,617

Legisiative Provisions

As at 31st March 2018 the Association is a charilable organisation registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies
Act 2014. lt is not registered for Value Added Tax.

West Wales Care and Repair Limited is a charitable organisation registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies
Act 2014. It is not registered for Value Added Tax.

As at 31st March 2018 the company is a company limited by shares and is registered under the Companies Act 2006 having

coverted from a 'registered society' registered under Co-operative and Community Benefit Society Act 2014 in 2017.

Group Structure

The Association holds the controlling interest in two subsidiary companies, Mill Bay Homes Limited and West Wales Care & Repair Limited.

Related Parties

Board members were reimbursed a total of £1,216 for attending meetings.

Board Member Cilr. Mr D Simpson was an elected representative of Pembrokeshire County Council.

Any transactions with Pembrokeshire County Councii are made at arms length and on normal

commerciat terms.

Board Members of the subsidiary company West Wales Care and Repair Limited, Clir. L Frayling

CliIr. Mr S Hancock are elected representatives of Pembrokeshire County Council.

Board Members, Clir, C Hughes and Clir. D Edwards are elected representatives of Ceredigion County Council.
Any transactions with Pembrokeshire County Council and Ceredigion County Council are made at arms length
and on normal commercial terms.

Pension Provision

The Association has reviewed its pension provison and has closed the Defined Beneifit scheme to new members with effect from 31 March 2018,

It has introduced an enhanced Defined Contribution scheme for new and exisitng members.
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21a Contingent Liabilities
Social Housing Grant may become repayable in the following circumstances:
- Disposal of a property (including disposals on assisted ownership terms) other than to another RSL;
- Change of use of a property to a use that would not be eligible for grant;
- Change of use of a property to a use that would be eligible for a lesser amount of grant;
- Demolition of a property where the site does not form part of a new social housing development by a RSL;
- A disposal given rise to a repayment of discount under Schedule 2 to the Housing Associations Act 1985,

An employer debt could arise on withdrawal from the Assaciation’s final salary pension through the Social Housing Pension Scheme
(SHPS). The estimated employer debt for the Association on withdrawal from the SHPS plan based on the financiat position of the
scheme as at 30 September 2014 was £8,277,805. As events which could crystallise the debt are unlikely to arise in the

foreseeable future, no specific provision is deemed necessary.

22a Units in Management 2018 2017

At end of year 2,690 2817

23a Legistative Provisions
As at 31st March 2018 the Association is a charitable organisation registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014.
It is not registered for Value Added Tax.
West Wales Care and Repair Limited is a charitable organisation registered under the Co-operative and Communily Benefit Societies Act 2014,
Mill Bay Homes Limited is a non-charitable organisation registered under the Companies Act 2006.

24a Group Structure
The Association holds the controlling interest in two subsidiary companies, Mill Bay Homes Limited and West Wales Care & Repair Limited.

25a Related Parties
Board members were reimbursed 2 total of £580 for attending meetings.
Board Member, Clir. Mr D Simpson was an elected representative of Pembrokeshire County Council.
Any {ransactions with Pembrokeshire County Council are made at arms length ang on normal commercial terms.
West Wales Care and Repair Limited is a wholly controlted subsidiary company ang has an outstanding inter-company
debtor balance of £3,107. (2017 creditor: £1,103).
During the year the Parent charged West Wales Care & Repair the following: Office rent £12,447, Management charges £16,728
During the year the parent confributed the following to West Wales Care & Repair; £49,898.
Mill Bay Homes Limited is a whotly controlled subsidiary and has an outstanding inter company creditor balance of £6,682,034
(2017: £6,923,570). This is made up of a loan balance of £5,580,000, gift aid of £1,015,274 and management recharges of £86,780.
During the year the parent advanced £5,560,000 in [oans and received £6,050,000 in loan repayments from Mill Bay Homes.
The loan is a revolving credit facility on @ commercial rate of interest.
During the year the parent charged Mill Bay Homes the following: Office rent £3,105, Management charges £20,250 and
Project management charge £12,764.

26d Pension Provision
The Association has reviewed its pension provison and has closed the Defined Beneifit scheme to new members with effect from 31 March 2018.
It has introduced an enhanced Defined Contribution scheme for new and exisitng members.
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PEMBROKESHIRE HOUSING ASSOCIATION
Thank you for your letter of 5 May 1999.

The above is accepted as a charity for tax purposes with effect from 31 March 1999 under our reference XR28295. The
charitable tax exemptions can therefore be claimed to the extent that income and/or gains are applicable and applied to
charitable purposes only.

Charity accounts should not be submitted unless called for by this office.

You should keep this letter in a safe place. The Registrar of Friendly Societies may require a copy as evidence that the
organisation can claim the tax exemptions available to charities under the Taxes Acts.

I have advised my colleague at Haverfordwest of the position and he will take up the question of tax liability to 31
March 1999. He will then transfer his file to this office to deal with the Association's tax affairs.

If you need any further help or information please ring one of the following helplines:

Charity Repayment Claims 0151 472 6036 or 6037 Gift Aid 0151 472 6038
Deeds of Covenant 0151 472 6036 or 6037 Charity Trading 0151 472 6043 or 6046
Charity CT Pay & File 0151 472 6054

If you require any additional booklets or forms please ring 0151 472 6293 or 6294, or fax your requirements on
0151 472 6268.

Yours sincerely

K. \:af,.
KEN S TH
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CHY129.bh KS127.chy
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
Year ended 31st March 2018

The Board of Management present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2018.

Strategic Report

Principal activities and corporate structure

The principal activities of Ateb Group Limited are in the provision of quality social housing and affordable homes
for rent.

It is registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 on charitable rules and is a
Registered Social Landlord.

It is the ultimate parent organisation in the Ateb Group that sets the overall strategic direction and policy
framework for the Group and provides management and administrative support to other Group members.

During the year the Association adopted new rules based on Community Housing Cymru 2017 Model Rules and
changed the name of Pembrokeshire Housing Association Limited to Ateb Group Limited. The legal and
regulatory status remains unchanged.

Board of Management

The Board of Management of Ateb Group Limited consists of voluntary members who have responsibility for the
strategic direction, general policy and non-executive management of the Association and the Group. The day to
day management of operations is delegated to the Group Chief Executive and the Executive Management
Team.

Strategic Plan

During the year we developed a new 3-year strategic plan based on three strategic aims:
> Increase corporate strength
»> Improve service delivery
» New business growth

The plan has identified 19no. strategic priorities for the Board over the course of the plan and is supported by a
S-year business plan from which we have set our 3-year financial targets. We will produce an Annual Strategic
Report at the end of each financial year setting out our performance against the plan and financial targets. The
first full review will be for the financial year 2018/19.

The strategic plan incorporates a number of our on-going corporate objectives as well as introducing new
priorities primarily around the rebrand and underlying improvements, governance enhancement, new business
development and service delivery improvements.

5-Year Business Plan

The key aims and objectives of the Business Plan are to reflect the Group's strategic objectives and corporate
priorities in operational activities and targets. The Board of Management actively monitors performance against
targets throughout the year.
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Risk management

The Group Board is responsible for strategic risk management. There is a risk management framework in place
that manages and mitigates key strategic and business critical risks.

Our approach to risk management is continually reviewed and monitored by the Audit Committee on behalf of
the Group Board. All subsidiary businesses are required to comply with the risk management framework.

The Risk Register is managed by the Risk Panel which consists of representatives from across the Group. Each
representative is a ‘risk owner’ acting as an early warning of changes or new and emerging risks.

This approach enables the Group to foresee risks and to implement mitigating controls before they adversely
impact on the business or delivery of key targets.

The Assets and Liabilities Register is also monitored by the Risk Panel and the Audit committee.

Financial review

2017-18 returned another strong financial performance for the Association. Although the net surplus for the year
at 19.7% was slightly down on the previous year (22.6%), this was after absorbing one-off costs and a significant
increase in replacement component costs as we continued to maintain a high level of investment in our
properties.

This was the main reason for the increase in operating costs (£0.3m). The total revenue spend on replacement
components was £1.1m (2017: £0.8m) and components classified as capital spend amounted to £1.5m.
Property maintenance is a large area of expenditure in this business and includes kitchen, bathroom and boiler
replacements as well as improving energy efficiency. 2017/18 incurred a much higher level of spend as
components came to the end of their useful economic lives.

Donated land value adjustments in respect of properties acquired from developers under Section 106 planning
obligations have also resulted in a reduction in the net surplus. This can vary significantly from year to year and
is largely outside the control of the business.

After adjusting for these items, the bottom line performance is very consistent across the years.

Turnover grew by 5.4% to just under £15m and the number of homes in management increased by 73no. A
further 495n0. is expected in the next 5-years with construction underway on several sites throughout
Pembrokeshire.

The wholly owned subsidiary private housebuilder Mill Bay Homes Limited returned over £1m in gift aid to the
parent for investment in the social and affordable homes building programmes.

Net cash inflow from operating activities during the year was £8.2m (2017: £6.4m). The main sources of cash
income are rental income and property sales and the main sources of cash outflow are costs associated with
property rentals, the acquisition and construction of new housing properties and loan interest.

The Statement of Financial Position has increased in strength with fixed assets increasing by 3.7% to £192.5m
and reserves by 13.1% to £25.5m. Cash and ready access to secured loan facilities ensures that all current
commitments are fully funded.
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£6.9m in Social Housing Grant (2017: £4.1m) was made available by the Welsh Government in support of the
social housing development programme and £9.8m (2017: £12.7m) was invested in construction during the
year.

As at 31 March, we maintained £20m of secured undrawn facilities available for immediate drawdown, and
£12.6m of cash in hand making a total available liquidity of £32.6m. This is sufficient to fund over two years'
commitments. In addition, we have an overdraft facility of £2m which is intended to act as a short-term liquidity
buffer.

At the year-end 76% of the current debt total of £86m was on fixed rate terms with a good mix of
lenders/investors, types of loan and terms to repayment. Based on our latest business plan, our debt is forecast
to increase from £86m (2017: £88m) to a peak of £106m in 2022/23.

There is more than sufficient collateral available to secure the debt requirement in the 5-year business plan.
Assuming an asset cover of 125%, we will need £44m of property to secure the £35m borrowing requirement.
Over £68m of property is available - an excess of £24m.

Our re-financing risk over the next six years is expected to be £29m spread between July 2021 and October
2023. This has been allowed for in our future plans.

All lenders’ covenants have been complied with by a comfortable margin and there are no matters of concern to
the regulator.

Maintenance and investment in our assets

We aim to maintain our assets to a high standard and in accordance with the Welsh Housing Quality Standard
(WHQS). The deadline for bringing our properties to WHQS standard has been fully complied with.

Financial strength

Maintaining the financial strength of the Association enables reinvestment in the homes and communities that
we serve and facilitates the raising of additional funding in the financial markets. Our financial resources are
utilised in accordance with our business strategy and are aimed at maximising the delivery of new homes in the
social housing development programme.

Value for money

Our strategic direction places a great deal of focus on Value for Money (VFM) and we will continue to develop
this further in a clear and transparent way around core indicators year on year.

When measured against the current Global Accounts VFM indicators, we perform very well.

We are committed to delivering value for money through our procurement strategy. Our procurement specialists
work closely with the National Procurement Service and Value Wales and our use of the Welsh Government's
procurement card continues to increase. We have made significant cost savings in a number of service areas
and we continue to build on this success.

Our recently launched service delivery platform is intended to promote the achievement of further success in
delivering VFM for all our customers.

Regulation

Ateb Group Limited is regulated by the Welsh Government.
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During 2017/18 a new Regulatory Framework was introduced. The Framework operates on a co-regulation
basis and focuses on ten performance standards.

The most recent regulatory opinion issued in Quarter 1 2017/18 was positive with two areas highlighted for
ongoing development — gender balance on the Board and ‘hard wire’ tenant involvement in the strategic
planning process.

Both development areas have been prioritised in the strategic plan.

The Future

Ateb Group Limited, as the ultimate parent organisation in the Group, is committed to achieving the Group’s
primary business purpose which is defined as:

> Creating better living solutions for the people and communities of West Wales
This is intended to encapsulate what the organisation stands for and drive everything that it does.

Long term strategic planning and financial modelling are fully supportive of this aim.

Changes in Fixed Assets

Details of fixed assets are set out in notes 10 to 12.

Responsibilities of the Board of Management

Housing Association legislation requires the Association’s Board of Management to prepare financial statements
for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Association and of its income
and expenditure for that year. In preparing those financial statements, the Board of Management is required to:

® select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
® make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent:

® state whether applicable Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice for
Registered Social Landlords have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements:

® prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Association will continue to operate.

The Board of Management is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Association and to enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the requirements of the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the
Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and The Accounting Requirements for Registered Social Landlords
General Determination (Wales) 2015. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Association and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.



ATEB GROUP LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Internal Financial Controls

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Association’s system of internal financial control, which is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of
proper accounting records and the reliability of financial information used within the business.

The following mechanisms were in place and were designed to provide effective internal control:

® clearly defined management and reporting structures;

® clearly defined standing orders and financial regulations;

= financial training programme;

= development of the Ateb Manual and the assurance framework

= procedures manuals for staff;

® separation of duties and independent checking procedures;

® management information and accounting systems with monthly reporting of financial results and other
performance indicators;

® rolling five-year business plans driven by the strategic plan;

® risk management process, including an annual risk review;

® asset and liabilities register; and

® monitoring of the control system by the Audit Committee, internal auditors and external audit:

® policy statement on fraud covering prevention, detection and reporting of fraud and the recovery of assets.

The Board of Management has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal financial control in existence
in the Association for the year ended 31st March 2018. No weaknesses were found in internal financial controls,
which resulted in material losses, contingencies, or uncertainties, which require disclosure in the financial
statements or in the auditors' report on the financial statements.

The Board of Management and Executive Officers

The Board of Management and Executive Officers of the Association are listed on Page 1.

Each member of the Board of Management holds one fully paid share of £1 in the Association. The Executive

Officers of the Association hold no interest in the Association’s share capital and although not having the legal
status of directors they act as executives within the authority delegated by the Board.

Post Balance Sheet Events

There are no significant post balance sheet events.

Auditors

A resolution to reappoint Bevan & Buckland will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

By Order he Board

N. Hampshjre
Secretary

Date: 28/06/18



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ATEB GROUP LIMITED REGISTERED
UNDER THE CO-OPERATIVE AND COMMUNITY BENEFIT SOCIETIES ACT 2014

In addition to our audit on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2018, we have reviewed the
Board's statement of Ateb Group Limited’s (“the Association”) compliance with the Welsh Government Circular
02/10, Internal Financial Control and Financial Reporting ("the Circular").

The objective of our review is to enable us to conclude on whether the Board has provided the disclosures
required by the Circular and whether the statement is consistent with the information of which we are aware
from our audit work on the financial statements.

We are not required to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s corporate governance
procedures or its internal financial control.

OPINION

With respect to the Board's statement on internal financial control on pages 6, in our opinion the Board of
Management has provided the disclosures required by the Circular and the statement is consistent with the
information of which we are aware from our audit work in the financial statements.

L‘%i&!&f\ \- %UC%QI\CJ

Bevan & Buckland

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
Langdon House

Langdon Road

Swansea SA18QY

Date: 28/06/18
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ateb Group Limited (“the Association”) for the year ended 31 March
2018 which comprise the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in reserves, statement of
financial position, the cash flow statement and its related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland”.

In our opinion the financial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Association's affairs as at 31st March 2018 and of its income
and expenditure for the year then ended:

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act
2014, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Requirements for Registered Social
Landlords General Determination (Wales) 2015.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC'’s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:
e the Boards’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

e the Board have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the Association’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on
the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated
in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Co-operative and Community Benefit
Societies Act 2014 require us to report to you if, in our opinion:
e a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained: or

e the Association has not kept proper accounting records; or
¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the books of account of the Association; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we need for our audit.

Responsibilities of the board

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Board (set out on page 5), the Board is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the Board determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board are responsible for assessing the Association's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board either intend to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Association's members, as a body, in accordance with Part 7 of the Co-
operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Association's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the association and the association's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Bevan & Buckland

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
Langdon House

Langdon Road

Swansea

SA1 8QY

Date: 28/06/18



ATEB GROUP LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Turnover

Less: Operating expenditure

Operating Surplus

Gainl(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Finance/Investment Income

Finance Costs

Loan Breakage Fee

Housing Finance Grant

Donated Land Value Adjustment

Other Income

Corporate Rebranding

Income from subsidiary company

Surplus for the year
Actuarial (loss) in respect of pension schemes

Total comprehensive income for the year

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Notes

2a

2a

5a

6a
7a
Ba
8c

8b

None of the Association's activities was acquired or discontinued during the two financial years.
Pembrokeshire Housing Association Limited changed it's name to ateb Group Limited in March 2018.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Balance at 1 April 2017
Surplus from statement of comprehensive income
Transfer of Reserves

Balance at 31 March 2018

10

2018 2017
£ £
14,993 441 14,230,373
(10,423,322) (9,279,426)
4,570,119 4,850,947
(25,242) 36,741
403,808 424,286
(3,515,409) (3,368,967)
z (600,244)
238,057 120,663
345,134 609,066
25,344 29,755
(108,650) -
1,015,274 1,077,676
2,949,435 3,279,922
= (60,000)
2,949 435 3,219,922
Revenue Restricted Total
Reserve Reserve Reserves
£ £ £
22,360,078 140,000 22,500,078
2,949,435 - 2,949,435
25,309,513 140,000 25,449,513




ATEB GROUP LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2018

Property, Plant & Equipment
Housing properties - depreciated cost
Other

Investments
Homebuy loan

Loans to subsidiary companies

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables: amounts falling due within one year

Trade receivables: amounts falling due after more than one year
Cash

Trade payables: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Trade payables: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net assets

Equity

Called up share capital
Restricted reserves
Revenue reserve

2018
Notes
£

10a 188,738,818
11a 520,654
189,259,471
12a 3
12a 3,223,423
192,482,897
14b 5,580,000
13a 309,178
14a 3,897,225
14b 3,506,510
12,613,878
20,326,792
15a (12,531,079)
7,795 714
205,858,611
15b (180,409,063)
25,449 547
16a 34
17a 140,000
17a 25,309,513
25,449 547

2017
£

181,657,829
567,285

182,225,124

3
3,336,433

185,561,560

5,850,000

161,582
2,320,227
1,689,896

14,672,034

18,843,739

(7,068,776)

11,774,963

203,186,523

(180,686,387)

22,500,136

58
140,000
22,360,078

The financial statements on pages 10 to 28 were approved by the Board of Management on 28 June 2018 and were signed on its behalf by:

Mo
e

v —\v‘ /—-\)\)

Mr M Lewis, Chair

= 14w

Mr D Birch, Board Member

Mr N Hampshire, Secretary



ATEB GROUP LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes
Net cash inflow from
operating activities (i)

Cash flow from investing activities

Payments to acquire and develop property

Receipts from sales of Property, Plant and Equipment
Social Housing Grant and contributions received
Other grants and contributions received

Purchase of other fixed assets

Finance/Investment income

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Finance costs

Issue of share capital (iv)
Mortgage and other loans received

- housing (iv)
Finance costs of loans issued (iv)
Loans issued - subsidiary company

Loans repaid - subsidiary company

Loans repaid

- housing (iv)

Net cash inflow from financing

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (i) , (iii)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

CASH FLOW STATEMENT - Additional Disclosure

Free cash flow
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Finance/Investment income

Finance costs

Adjustments for reinvestment in existing properties
Component Replacements

Purchase of other replacement fixed assets

Free cash generated before loan repayments

Loans repaid (excluding revolving credit facilities and overdrafts)

Free cash generated after loan repayments

(9,897,354)
96,900
4,251,943
239,057
(156,197)
403,808

(2,959,402)
4

(117,565)
(5,780,000)
6,050,000

(2,397,781)

2018
£ £
8,208,432
(11,164,694)
194,750
4,172,262
120,663
(98,983)
424,286
(5.061,843)
(3,530,927)
12,946,019
(328,432)
(6,440,224)
6,180,224
(2,365,849)
(5,204,744)
(2,058,155)
14,672,034
12,613,879
0
2018
£
8,208,432
403,808
(2.959,402)
(1,507,279)
(156,197)
3,989,362
(2,397,781)
1,591,581

2017

£
6,381,656

(6,351,717)

6,460,811

6,490,750
8,181,284

14,672,034

2017

£
6,381,656
424,286
(3,530,927)

(1,385,803)
(98,983)

1,790,229

(2,365,849)

(575,620)



ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

(i) Reconciliation of operating surplus to net cash inflow

from operating activities 2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities £ £
Operating surplus 4,570,119 4,950,947
Depreciation 3,027,269 2,815,948
Amortisation of SHG (891,261) (858,399)
Abortive development costs 45,251 17,697
Impairment of housing properties . 50,372
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables and inventories 1,528,597 857,179
Increase / (Decrease)in trade payables 310,545 (575,002)
Share capital cancelled (28) (13)
Charge for bad debts 37,253 41,865
Amortisation of finance issue costs 115,774 111,719
Capitalised Overheads (288,780) (303,168)
Loan breakage fee - (600,244)
Other Income 25,344 29,755
Corporate Rebranding (108,650) -
Pension deficit contribution paid (163,000) (157,000)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 8,208,432 6,381,656
(ii} Analysis of changes in cash and cash equivalents during the year 2018 2017

£ £
At beginning of year 14,672,034 8,181,284
Net cash inflow/(outflow) (2,058,155) 6,490,750
At end of year 12,613,879 14,672,034

(iii) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents as shown in the Statement of Financial Position
Change in Change in
2018 2017 year 2017 2016 year

£ £ £ £ £ £
Cash 12,613,879 14,672,034 (2,058,155) 14,672,034 8,181,284 6,490,750
12,613,879 (2,058,155) 14,672,034 8,181,284 6,490,750

14,672,034

(iv) Analysis of changes in financing during the year

Share Capital

Housing Loans

2018 2017 2018 2017
£ £ £ £

At beginning of year 58 71 87,619,300 77,290,754
Cash inflow from financing 4 - - 12,946,019
Cash outflow from financing (28) (13) (2,256,686) (2,365,849)
Cash outflow from finance costs - - (117,565) (135,905)

34 58 85,245,048 87,735,019
Non cash items:
Debenture discount - (4,000) (4,000)
Amortisation of finance costs - - (115,774) (111,719)
Finance costs accrued - - - -
Other - - - -
At end of year 34 58 85,125,274 87,619,300




ATEB GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

a)

b)

c)

d)

ii)

Principal Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with applicable Accounting Standards including The Accounting Requirements for Registered Social
Landlords General Determination (Wales) 2015, Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102 and the
Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) 2014. Ateb Group Limited is a public benefit entity (PBE)
as defined in FRS102. A summary of the more important policies which have been applied consistently
are set out below. The Association continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial
statements.

Turnover

Turnover is stated net of voids but inclusive of service charges receivable, special needs management
allowances receivable and amortisation of social housing grant. Service charge income is recognised at
the point at which it is collected.

Housing Properties

Housing Properties are stated at cost, to include all costs incurred in the delivery of the
Association’s development programme to include:

i) Cost of acquiring land and buildings

i) Site development costs

iii) External and internal development on-costs

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided in accordance with FRS102 and the Statement of Recommended Practice
(SORP) 2014.

i) Housing Properties - depreciation is charged on the gross historic cost of property
components. Grant is allocated to land and the main structure of the property but not to other
components. The depreciable amounts are written off over the estimated useful economic lives
from the date of purchase/build. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Where a housing property comprises two or more major components with substantially different
useful economic lives then each component is accounted for separately. Expenditure relating to
the subsequent replacement or renewal of components is capitalised as incurred.
Housing properties are broken down into the following ten components: structure, land, kitchen,
bathroom, boiler, wet system, electrical system, windows, external doors and roof.

Leasehold Properties are depreciated over the remaining period of the lease.

Shared Ownership Properties are not depreciated on the basis that the residual
value is likely to be greater than the net cost.

ii) Other Tangible Fixed Assets - Depreciation is charged on the historic cost of other fixed
assets to write them down to their estimated residual values over their expected useful lives.
Office premises — using component accounting methodology as per housing properties. The
office premises is broken down into the following eight components: land, structure, boiler, wet
system, windows, external doors, roof & lift. Freehold land is not depreciated.
Office equipment — 10 years
Computer equipment — 4 years
Motor vehicles — evenly over 3 to 5 years to estimated residual values
Tools — 3 years

Replacement and Renewals
Expenditure on assets costing less than £500, which do not form part of a larger
asset are written off to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which the
expenditure is incurred.

-14 -



ATEB GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

e)

g)

h)

i)

k)

1)

Social Housing Grant

Social Housing Grants are capital grants receivable from the Welsh Government are shown within trade
receivable in the Statement of Financial Position. Grants received for housing properties are recognised
as income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the expected life of the asset. SHG
received after the year end in respect of expenditure before the year end has been included within
Trade Receivables. Any SHG repayable or received in advance is included within Trade Payables.

The company continues to adapt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements

Development Administration

Development administration costs, including relevant office and staff overheads, are capitalised where
costs are considered to be incremental to the development programme. Non-incremental costs are
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in accordance with FRS102.

Donated Properties Restricted Reserve

The reserve represents the value of properties donated by the former Soroptomist Housing Association
(Tenby & District) Limited. It is intended to ensure the continuing use of the properties for the provision
of affordable housing.

Finance Costs
Finance costs associated with the provision of loan finance are amortised over the term of the related
loans using the effective interest rate.

Inventories
Work in progress is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value of development on proposed
schemes.

Operating Leases
Costs in respect of operating leases are amortised on a straight line basis over the lease In accordance
with FRS102.

Low Cost Home Ownership

Surplus or deficits made on either the administration of Do It Yourself Home Buy Option or on the
development and subsequent sale of Low Cost Home Ownership properties are credited or charged to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income at the time the property has been sold. The Association
accounts for Home Buy transactions by creating an investment for the loan advanced to the property
owner and deducting the grant received from the Welsh Government.

Pensions

The Association participates in the industry wide defined benefit final salary pension scheme.
Contributions are based on pension costs across the various participating Associations taken as a
whole. The assets of the scheme are invested and managed independently of the finances of the
Association. Pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of an independent qualified
actuary on a tri-annual basis. The present value of the past service deficit contribution is recognised as
a liability in the Statement of Financial Position. The Statement of Comprehensive Income reflects both
a financing cost in respect of the calculated present value of future contributions, as well as a charge for
pension deficit contributions arising directly in the year.

Recycled Capital Grant Fund

Amounts of Social Housing Grant otherwise repayable on disposal of properties are accounted for by
credit to a Recycled Capital Grant Fund, which can be used to fund future developments that would be
eligible for Social Housing Grant. The fund operates on the basis of first money in, first money out
normally within a period of three years.

-15-



ATEB GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

n)

o)

P)

q)

s)

t)

u)

Impairment

An impairment review is undertaken on an annual basis to ensure that all properties are carried in the
Statement of Financial Position at the lower of cost or recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Where assets are held for their service potential value in use
is determined by the present value of the asset's remaining service potential plus the net amount
expected to be received from its disposal. Depreciated replacement cost is taken as a suitable
measurement model. An impairment loss is reversed if the reasons for the impairment loss have
ceased to apply and included in the surplus or deficit in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Improvements
Expenditure will only be capitalised if it results in an increase to the economic performance of the asset.

Housing Finance Grant

The Housing Finance Grant (HFG) is a grant introduced by the Welsh Government in 2013/14. It is paid
by the Welsh Government to RSL’s as a contribution towards the cost of housing assets. The primary
purpose of the HFG is to subsidise the capital and interest costs for the provision of affordable housing.
The grant will be paid over a period of 30 years but delivery of the housing will take place in the first few
years of the 30 year period. The accounting treatment for the grant is covered under the Housing
Association Circular RSL 03/13.

Donated Land Value Adjustment (s106 Properties)

Properties or land acquired at below market price from a non-public body under s106 agreements are
treated in the following way: the difference between current value and the acquisition price is shown as
income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and PPE in the Statement of Financial Positon.

Value Added Tax
Due to the nature of the business ateb Group Limited has been granted exemption from registration.
The financial statements include VAT to the extent that it is suffered by the Association.

Corporation Tax

The Association is a charitable organisation registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit
Societies 2014 and as such is not liable for Corporation Tax on its ordinary activities.

Loan Arrangement Fees
Loan arrangement fees and set up costs are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over
the life of the loan using an effective interest rate.

Financial Instruments

Under FRS102 loans are classified as either basic or complex. The Association has reviewed its loan
portfolio and is satisfied that all loans can be classified as basic and are recognised at amortised
historical cost.

Loan Facility

The Association provides a revolving credit facility to the subsidiary Mill Bay Homes to the assist
towards the cost of various developments and land acquisitions. The interest rate is set at commercial
terms.

Provisions for Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Association has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Association will be required to settle the obligation in the
future and a reliable estimate can be made of the value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and on demand deposits, together with short term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

y)

Significant Management Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results in the future may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate revised and in any future periods affected.
The following are management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Association that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of social housing properties

Management have to make an assessment as to whether an indicator of impairment exists. In making
this judgement, management considered the detailed criteria set out in the Statement of Recommended
Practice for Social Housing Providers (2014). Specifically this includes whether there is an impairment
indicator for a cash-generating unit. For these purposes, a cash-generating unit is defined as a property
scheme.

Depreciation

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful economic lives
based on various factors. The actual lives of the assets are re-assessed on a periodic basis and may
vary depending on the standard of the asset.

For housing property assets, the assets are broken down into components based on management's
assessment of the properties and the specific costs incurred in replacing these components. Individual
economic lives are assigned to these components. Management have reviewed the components and
have concluded that the asset lives are appropriate.

Provisions and accruals

Management bases its judgements on the circumstances relating to each specific event and upon
currently available information. However, given the inherent difficulties in the estimation of liabilities in
these areas, it cannot be guaranteed that additional costs will not be incurred beyond the amounts
accrued.

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

The Group has obligations to pay pension benefits to certain employees. The cost of these benefits and

the present value of the obligation depend on a number of factors, including; life expectancy, salary
increases, asset valuations and the discount rate on corporate bonds. Management estimates these
factors in determining the net pension obligation in the Statement of Financial Position. The
assumptions reflect historical experience and current trends.’

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

These comprise rent arrears, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Financial
assets are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Discounting is
omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. If there is objective evidence that there is an
impairment loss, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced accordingly. A financial asset is
derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows expire, or when the financial asset and all
substantial risks and reward are transferred.

If an arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, the financial asset is measured at the present
value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

These financial liabilities include trade and other payables and interest bearing loans and borrowings.
Non-current debt instruments which meet the necessary conditions in FRS 102, are initially recognised
at fair value adjusted for any directly attributable transaction cost and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest-related charges recognised as an
expense in finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Discounting is omitted where the
effect of discounting is immaterial.

A financial liability is derecognised only when the contractual obligation is extinguished, that is, when the

obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

-17 -
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Officers’ and Senior Executives' Emoluments

Officers and Senior Executives are defined as the members of the Board

the Directors.

Emoluments (including pension contributions and benefits
in kind)

of Management, Group Chief Executive and

2018
£

390,637

During the year the emoluments (excluding pension contributions) of the Chief Executive who was the

highest paid Senior Executive was £111,760 (2017 : £111,045).

The Senior Executives who served during the year were remunerated as follows:

£60,001 to £70,000
£70,001 to £80,000
£80,001 to £90,000
£90,001 to £100,000
£100,001 to £110,000
£110,001 to £120,000

2018 reflects 48 months of Senior Executives' management cost (2017 : 48 months)

None of the Board received any emoluments during the year.

2018

-

[T

The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the SHPS final salary contributory pension scheme.

Staff numbers and cost

The average number of full time equivalent persons (including Senicr Executives) employed during the year was:

Office staff
Direct Labour
Cleaning staff

Staff costs for the above persons were:
Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Pension costs (note 20a)

-20-

2018
59.21
36.00

0.60

2,616,936
247,713
181,109

2017
£

428,295

2017

-

[

2,456,119
230,058
166,090

2,852,267
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Operating surplus

The operating surplus is stated after charging/(crediting):
Depreciation

Finance issue costs

Debenture discount charge

Auditors remuneration

- In their capacity as auditors, including VAT
- Inrespect of other services, including VAT

Gainl(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Surplus/(loss) on sale of properties
Surplus on sale of vehicles/equipment

Finance/lnvestment Income

Finance/lnvestment Income

Finance Costs
On loans repayable in instalments wholly or partly in
more than 5 years

On loans repayable other than in instalments wholly
or partly in more than 5 years

Transfer from subsidiary company

Gift Aid payment

Loan Breakage Fee

During FY 2016-17, the Association refinanced a fixed interest loan with the

Co-operative Bank PLC. The bank gave notice of its intention to seek

repayment of the £8m loan in 2023. The two key elements to re-financing
risk are the availability of finance when repayment becomes due and the

level of interest rates prevailing at the time.

Independent external advice was obtained. In order to mitigate risk exposure,
the decision was taken to refinance the bank loan with a new long term loan
from BAE Systems Pension Fund at a fixed rate of interest. This resulted in a

break cost of £600k.

Taxation

Due to its charitable status, the Association is not liable for Corporation Tax

on its normal activities.

o

2018
£

3,027,269

233,339
4,000

3,425,159

90,250

1,015,274

1,015,274

2017
£

2,866,321
183,508
4,000

10,140

3,278,717

90,250

3,368,967

1,077,676

1,077,676

2017

600,244

600,244




ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

10a Property, Plant and Equipment - Housing Properties

Housing properties Shared ownership properties
held for letting held for letting
Under
Completed Construction Completed Total
£ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 April 2017 192,809,029 - 203,033,129
Additions 4,146,403 366,185 10,130,443
Reclassification 5,263,731 - -
Disposals (635,547) - (635,547)
At 31 March 2018 201,583,616 366,185 212,528,025
Depreciation
At 1 April 2017 (21,375,301) - (21,375,301)
Charged for the year (2,753,180) - (2,753,180)
Disposals 339,272 - 339,272
At 31 March 2018 (23,789,209) - (23,789,209)
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 177,794,408 366,185 188,738,818
At 31 March 2017 171,433,728 - 181,657,829
The total net book value of housing properties comprises: 2018 2017
£ £
Freehold property 188,359,482 181,278,493
Long leasehold property 54,294 54,294
Short leasehold property 325,042 325,042
188,738,818 181,657,82:

Development administration expenditure and other indirect costs capitalised during the year amounted
to £288,780 (2017 : £303,168).
Interest capitalised during the year amounted to £nil (2017 : £nil).

Component Replacement spend for the year amounted to £1 ,507,279 (2017: £1,385,803)
Housing Properties includes Land with a carrying value of £26,284,116 (2017: £25,028,206)
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2018

Property, Plant & Equipment - Other Fixed Assets

Cost

At 1 April 2017
Additions
Disposals/Write off/Adj.

At 31 March 2018
Grants and Contributions
At 1 April 2017
Additions

Disposals

At 31 March 2018
Depreciation

At 1 April 2017
Charged for the year
Disposals/Write off/Adj.
At 31 March 2018

Net book value
At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

Investments

Cost of Home Buy Loans

Freehold Tools & Motor Computer
Offices Equipment vehicles Equipment Total

£ £ £ £ £
490,981 517,571 23,743 556,266 1,588,561
- 35,822 51,421 68,954 156,197
. - (14,545) - (14,545)
490,981 553,393 60,619 625,220 1,730,213
: 4 (44,101) - (44,101)
N . (44,101) - (44,101)
(232,303) (412,503) (21,444) (355,017) (1,021,266)
(9,465) (32,843) (8,879) (107,549) (158,737)
: Z 14,545 - 14,545
(241,767) (445,346) (15,778) (462,566) (1,165,458)
249214 108,046 740 162,654 520,654
258,679 105,068 2,289 201,249 567,295

2018 2017

£ £
3,223,423 3,336,433
3,223,423 3,336,433

The above investments represent a 30% and 50% interest in 101 (2017: 104) properties acquired under the Welsh Government Low Cost

Home Ownership Schemes.

Shares in subsidiary companies :
Mill Bay Homes Limited
West Wales Care & Repair Limited
Effective Building Solutions Limited

Inventories

Work In Progress

i

2018

2018

309,178

309,178

2017

161,582
161,582
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Trade Receivables

Amounts falling due within one year
Arrears of Rent and Service Charges
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts

Prepayments and accrued income

Inter-company debtors - subsidiary companies

Social Housing Grant and capital contributions receivable
Housing Finance Grant

Other receivables

Other receivables includes £1,161 (2017 : £1,995) in respect of car loans to staff for assisted car purchase repayable within

2018
£

483,074
(59,000)
424,074
107,693
1,105,140
2,094,788
59,774
105,757

3,897,225

one year. The number of staff included in the scheme at 31 March 2018 was 1 (2017: 2).

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Loan to subsidiary company

Housing Finance Grant

Rent Arrears Long Term Repayment Plans

Trade Payables
Amounts falling due within one year

Rental income prepaid

Accrued interest

Amounts owed in respect of housing development
Taxation, pension and social security

Social Housing Grant and capital contributions received in advance
Inter-company creditors - subsidiary companies
Other payables

Accruals and deferred income

Housing loans

Grant Recycling Fund

SHG - Deferred Income

Movement in amortisation of loan acquisition cost
Annual Leave Year End Accrual

Past Service Pension liability

-24.

2018
£
5,580,000

5,580,000

3,498,841

3,498,841

2018
£

184,358
862,488
258,568
109,788
4,553,108
604
17,171
1,721,467
3,207,308
484,741
918,398
1,093
35,452
176,535

2017
£
425,337
(54,500)
370,837
135,436
1,074,672
29,954
709,328

2017
£
5,850,000

1,682,833

1,682,833

2017
£
171,920
310,482
535,193
103,151

13,022
1,435,559
2,727,461

586,696
888,982
(1,048)
34,642
162,717
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Trade Payables
Amounts falling due after more than one year

Housing Loans
SHG - Deferred Income

Homebuy Grant - Deferred Income
Past Service Pension liability

follows:
Repayable by instalments
One year or less

Between one and five years
In five years or more

Finance Costs

Repayable otherwise than by instalments in more than five
years

In more than five years
Less : Debenture Discount Account

Non-Housing Loans

Long term finance from Banks, Building Societies and Bond providers represent loans taken out over a 5 to 33 year period.

2018
£
81,916,873
94,397,020
3,223,423
871,748

2018
£
3,207,308
10,440,507
71,367,606
85,015,421
(774,721)

84,240,700

2018

1,000,000
(16,972)

983,028

At 31 March 2018 of the total loans outstanding the ratio of fixed rate loans to variable rate interest loans
was 76:24 (2017: 67:33). At the year-end interest rates ranged from 2.76% to 9.87%.

SHG and other grants
Housing properties
held for letting

Under
Completed Construction
£ £

SHG at 1 April 2017 94,471,568 5,707,728
HFG at 1 April 2017 1,793,909 -
Additions 542,880 3,456,906
Reclassification 1,821,250 (1,921,250)
Disposals (107,897) -
At 31 March 2018 98,621,710 7,243,384
At 31 March 2017 96,265,477 5,707,728
Amortisation
At 1 April 2017 (9,672,321) -
Charged for the year (891,261) -
Disposals 13,907 -
At 31 March 2018 (10,549,675)
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 88,072,035 7,243,384
At 31 March 2017 5,707,728

86,593,156

=08

Shared ownership properties
held for letting

Completed
£

2017
£
84,889,771
91,411,900
3,336,433
1,048,283

2017
£
2,727,461
10,989,636
73,779,321
87,496,418
(856,145)

2017

1,000,000
(20,972)

Total
£
100,179,296
1,793,909
3,999,786

(107,897)

105,865,093

(8,672,321)
(891,261)
13,907



ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

15e Grant Recycling Fund

2018 2017
£ £
Opening Balance 586,696 503,645
Property Sales 202,725 212,790
Recycled to Development (304,680) (129,739)
Closing Balance 484,741 586,696
15f Homebuy Grant
2018 2017
£ £
3,223,423 3,336,433
Homebuy Grant 3,223,423 3,336,433
16a Called up share capital - non equity 2018 2017
£ £
Alictted issued and fully paid
At the beginning of the year 58 71
Issued 4 z
Cancelled (28) (13)
At the end of the year 34 58
Each member of the Association holds one share of £1. The shares are non-transferable and non-redeemable and carry no rights to receive
either income or capital payments.
17a Reserves
At 1 April Surplus for Transfer At 31 March
2017 the year of reserves 2018
£ £ £ £
Revenue Reserve 22,360,078 2,949,435 - 25,309,513
Restricted Reserves
Deonated Properties 140,000 - - 140,000
Total 22,500,078 2,949,435 - 25,449,513
Analysed as:
Revenue Reserve 25,309,513
Restricted Reserves (Donated Properties) 140,000
25,449,513
18a Capital Commitments 2018 2017
£ £
Capital expenditure that has been contracted for but
has not been provided for in the financial statements 16,347,765 5,424,935
Capital expenditure that has been authorised by the
Board of Management but has not yet been
contracted for; 20,839,650 6,085,687

The commitments at 31 March 2018 will be funded from grants from the Welsh Government, or local authorities,
the balance being funded from private finance loans and sales under the Low Cost Home Ownership Programme.

o DB
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Operating leases
The Association has photocopiers, telecommunications equipment and vehicles on non-cancellable operating leases. At the
Statement Of Financial Position date the Association had annual commitments (inc. VAT) under such leases as follows:

2018 2017
£ £
Commitment:
Within one year 93,759 65,874
Within two to five years 218,930 139,467

Pensions Obligations

The Association participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (the Scheme), a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some
500 non-associated employers. The scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK.

Itis not possible for the company to obtain sufficient information to enable it to account for the scheme as a defined benefit scheme.

Therefore it accounts for the scheme as a defined contribution scheme.

The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30 December 2005.

This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council,
set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK.

The scheme is classified as a 'last man standing arrangement'. Therefore the company is potentially liable for other participating employers'
obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the scheme.

Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme,
A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2014. This actuarial valuation was certified on the
23 November 2015 and showed assets of £3,123m, liabilities of £4,446m and a deficit of £1 ,323m. To eliminate this funing shortfall, the trustees
and the participating employers have agreed that additional contributions will be paid, in combination from all employers, to the scheme as follows:

Deficit Contributions

Tier 1

From 01 April 2016 to 30 September 2020: £40.6m per annum (payable monthly and increasing by 4.7% each year on 01 April.)

Tier 2

From 01 April 2016 to 30 September 2023: £28.6m per annum (payable monthly and increasing by 4.7% each year on 01 April.)

Tier 3

From 01 April 2016 to 30 September 2026: £32.7m per annum (payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year on 01 April.)

Tier 4

From 01 April 2016 to 30 September 2026: £31.7m per annum (payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year on 01 April.)

Note that the schemes previous valuation was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2011, this valuation was certified on 17 Decembei
2012 and showed assets of £2,062m, liabilities of £3,097m and deficit of £1,035m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, payments consisted of the
Tier 1,2 & 3 deficit contributions.

Where the scheme is in deficit and where the Association has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement, the Association recognises a liability for
this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of the deficit reduction contributions payable under the agreement that relates to
the deficit. The present value is calculated using the discount rate detailed in these disclosures. The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised
as a finance cost.

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Present Values of Provision 31 March 2016

£

£

£

Present Value of Provision 1,048,000

1,211,000

1,308,000

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Provisions

Period Ending
31 March 2018

Period Ending
31 March 2017

£ £
Provision at the start of period 1,211,000 1,308,000
Unwinding of the discount factor (interest expense) 15,000 26,000
Deficit contribution paid (163,000) (157,000)
Remeasurements - impact of any change in assumptions (15,000) 34,000
Remeasurements - amendments to the contribution schedule - -
Provision at end of period 1,048,000 1,211,000

Statement of Comprehensive Income Impact

Interest Expense
Remeasurements - impact of any change in assumptions
Remeasurements - amendments to the contribution schedule

Period Ending
31 March 2018
£
26,000
34,000

31 March 2017
% per annum

Period Ending
31 March 2017
£
26,000
34,000

31 March 2016
% per annum

Assumptions 31 March 2018
% per annum
Rate of discount 1.72

1.33

2.06

The discount rates shown up are the equivalent single discount rates which, when used to discount the future recovery plan contributions due,

would give the same results as using a full AA corporate bond yield curve to discount the same recovery plan contributions.

e
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ATEB GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Contingent Liabilities
Social Housing Grant may become repayable in the following circumstances:
- Disposal of a property (including disposals on assisted ownership terms) other than to another RSL;
- Change of use of a property to a use that would not be eligible for grant;
- Change of use of a property to a use that would be eligible for a lesser amount of grant;
- Demolition of & property where the site does not form part of a new social housing development by a RSL;
- A disposal given rise to a repayment of discount under Schedule 2 to the Housing Associations Act 1985.

An employer debt could arise on withdrawal from the Association's final salary pension through the Social Housing Pension Scheme
(SHPS). The estimated employer debt for the Association on withdrawal from the SHPS plan based on the financial position of the
scheme as at 30 September 2014 was £8,277,805. As events which could crystallise the debt are unlikely to arise in the
foreseeable future, no specific provision is deemed necessary.

Units in Management 2018 2017

At end of year 2,690 2,617

Legislative Provisions

As at 31st March 2018 the Association is a charitable organisation registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014.
It is not registered for Value Added Tax.

West Wales Care and Repair Limited is a charitable organisation registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014,
Mill Bay Homes Limited is & non-charitable organisation registered under the Companies Act 2006.

Group Structure
The Association holds the controlling interest in two subsidiary companies, Mill Bay Homes Limited and West Wales Care & Repair Limited.

Related Parties

Board members were reimbursed a total of £580 for attending meetings.

Board Member, Clir. Mr D Simpson was an elected representative of Pembrokeshire County Council.

Any transactions with Pembrokeshire County Council are made at arms length and on normal commercial terms.

West Wales Care and Repair Limited is a wholly controlied subsidiary company and has an outstanding inter-company

debtor balance of £3,107. (2017 creditor: £1,103).

During the year the Parent charged West Wales Care & Repair the following: Office rent £12,447, Management charges £16,728
During the year the parent contributed the following to West Wales Care & Repair: £49,898.

Mill Bay Homes Limited is a wholly controlled subsidiary and has an outstanding inter company creditor balance of £6,682,034
(2017: £6,923,570). This is made up of a loan balance of £5,580,000, gift aid of £1,015,274 and management recharges of £86,780.
During the year the parent advanced £5,560,000 in loans and received £6,050,000 in loan repayments from Mill Bay Homes.

The loan is a revolving credit facility on a commercial rate of interest.

During the year the parent charged Mill Bay Homes the following: Office rent £3,105, Management charges £20,250 and

Project management charge £12,764.

Pension Provision
The Association has reviewed its pension provison and has closed the Defined Beneifit scheme to new members with effect from 31 March 2018,
It has introduced an enhanced Defined Contribution scheme for new and exisitng members.
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